

Handbook 2022

Presidents Message





When we were invited to become Presidents of the Bassetlaw League for 2022, we were both surprised and privileged to be offered such a position. It is an honour for both us and a small village club East Drayton Sports Club.

We have been involved with our club ever since it was reformed in 1991 and it has been a huge part of our life. We love cricket in all its forms and all the highs and lows it takes you through. We have met with some lovely people and made some lasting friendships which we hope we will continue to do.

We intend to follow our predecessors and visit as many clubs as we can during the season. We will be strangers to many of you so if an unknown couple arrive at your ground one Saturday afternoon it is likely to be us proudly bearing our chain of office.

We wish everyone involved with the League success and, most importantly, a healthy and enjoyable 2022.

John & Jean Bingham
Joint Presidents

i

Contents

Presidents Message	i
Acronyms	1
League Contact Details	2
Club Directory	5
Unforeseen Matters	21
Constitution	22
Generic Rules	28
Laws & Regulations	40
Qualification & Registration of Players	44
Nottinghamshire Recreational Cricket Advisory Panel Disciplinary Regulations	52
Rules & Playing Conditions – League Competition	72
Rules & Playing Conditions – t20 Cup Competitions	88
Active Umpires	102

Acronyms

BDCL Bassetlaw & District Cricket League

BDUA Bassetlaw & District Umpires' Association

ECB England & Wales Cricket Board

NPL Nottinghamshire Premier League

UK United Kingdom

League Contact Details

All League correspondence should be sent to secretary@bdcl.org.uk.

All Match correspondence should be sent to match.admin@bdcl.org.uk.

Officers of the League

President

John & Jean Bingham e: jean.bingham@bdcl.org.uk

Vice-President

Trevor Haywood e: trevor.haywood@bdcl.org.uk

Immediate Past President

Allan Vollans e: allan.vollans@bdcl.org.uk

Chair

Gareth Jones t: 01777 701403

e: chair@bdcl.org.uk

Secretary

Neil Fenwick t: 01623 823548

m: 07763 377455

e: secretary@bdcl.org.uk

Treasurer

Tom Munro t: 01909 720812

m: 077963 332072

e: treasurer@bdcl.org.uk

League Statistician

Stephanie Roberts e: stephanie.roberts@bdcl.org.uk

Umpires Appointment Secretary

John Leaning t: 01909 770344

m: 07972 260191

e: umpires@bdcl.org.uk

Administration

Advertising, Financial Planning, General Enquiries & Sponsorship

e: enquiries@bdcl.org.uk

Independent Examiner

Derek Smallwood e: derek.smallwood@bdcl.org.uk

Handbook

MJ Vie Ltd. e: enquiries@mjvie.co.uk

Match Administration

e: match.admin@bdcl.org.uk

Umpire Assessments

e: assessments@bdcl.org.uk

Website Enquiries

e: webmaster@bdcl.org.uk

Life Vice-Presidents

Jim Garton Harthill

Gerry Graney BDUA/Glapwell Colliery Richard Martin BDUA/Edwinstowe

County Welfare Officer

Graham Redfern t: 0115 9823000

e: lwo@bdcl.org.uk

Club Directory

The Club Directory information is provided by the member clubs and is correct at the time of going to print. Subsequent updates will appear on the club pages of the BDCL Website (www.bdcl.org.uk/clubs).

ANSTON

Secretary

Suzanne Moyle

m: 07468 577578 e: anstoncc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Josh Littlewood
 m:
 07795 345020

 Nick Malone
 m:
 07812 995453

 Simon Whatley
 m:
 07540 063233

Grounds

1st/2nd Ryton Road, North Anston, S25 4DL

///kennels.essay.openly

3rd/4th Greenlands Park, Quarry Lane, North Anston, **S25** 4DB

///question.icons.geologist

ASTON HALL

Secretary

Steve Ward

m: 07941 438586 e: ahcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Malcolm Shaw
 m:
 07927 364937

 Janet Ward
 m:
 07894 711936

Grounds

1st/2nd

3rd Todwick Cricket Club, Goosecarr Lane, Todwick, S26 1HG

///excusing.tracks.rental
Green Lane, Aston, **S26 2BD**

Green Lane, Aston, \$26 2BD

///noble.yesterday.amps

BAWTRY

Secretary

Michael Clement

m: 07764 658347 e: bawtrycc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Steve Blackburn
 m:
 07771 390907

 Tom Haslam
 m:
 07460 636833

 Will Roberts
 m:
 07912 362085

Ground

1st/2nd Great North Road, Bawtry, DN10 6JH

///tabs.same.sing

BLIDWORTH COLLIERY WELFARE

Secretary

David Donaldson

m: 07887 977350 e: bcwcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Kyle Kirkland
 m:
 07854 233305

 Paul Robottom
 m:
 07977 253280

 Andy Spence
 m:
 07980 765454

Ground

1st/2nd Burmah Road, Blidworth, NG21 OLR

///committee.testing.mooring

BLYTH

Secretary

Andy Carter

m: 07790 280990 e: blythcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Jemima Dalton
 m:
 07938 136607

 Thomas Fisher
 m:
 07922 363228

Ground

1st/2nd Park Drive, Sheffield Road, Blyth, S81 8HF

///newsstand.cello.jigging

CARLTON

Secretary

Craig Myatt

m: 07985 265999 e: carltoncc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Matt Bateman
 m:
 07578 542769

 Vicky Bateman
 m:
 07853 229257

 Paul Ridsdale
 m:
 07874 997571

Ground

1st Doncaster Road, Costhorpe, S81 9QR

///reinvest.roses.cost

CLIPSTONE

Secretary

Rvan Durkin

m: 07802 762754 e: clipstonecc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 James Hubball
 m:
 07827 226522

 Louis Sprigg
 m:
 07966 910519

Ground

1st/2nd Seventh Avenue, Clipstone, NG21 9DP

///engage.green.firms

CLUMBER PARK

Secretary

Rhys Ward

m: 07480 625150 e: cpcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Mike Cox
 m:
 07866 528779

 Mark Dean
 m:
 07728 289488

 Darren Edwards
 m:
 07834 683198

Grounds

 $1^{st}/2^{nd}$ Clumber Lane, Clumber Park, S80 3AZ

///conveying.nothing.situated

3rd Clumber Lane, Clumber Park, S80 3AZ

///tested.elections.dries

CUCKNEY

Secretary

Nicola Owen

m: 07483 172631 e: cuckneycc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Richard Bostock m: 07824 998669

Grounds

1st-4th Langwith Road, Cuckney, NG20 9NG

///trouble.essential.activity

EAST DRAYTON SPORTS

Secretary

Jean Bingham

m: 01777 248797 e: edscc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 John Bingham
 m:
 01777 248797

 Jaymie Duncan
 m:
 07979 102715

Ground

1st Southbeck Lane, Mill Lane, East Drayton, DN22 0LP

///bench.broadcast.townhouse

EVERTON

Secretary

Chris Woods

m: 07903 816497 e: evertoncc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Ground

1st Main Street, Everton, DN10 5AR

///employ.fruits.search

FARNSFIELD

Secretary

Ioe Worrall

m: 07432 507379 e: farnsfieldcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 James Bowker
 m:
 07565 679815

 Alex West
 m:
 07949 718635

Grounds

1st/2nd Station Lane, Farnsfield, NG22 8LA

///segregate.deliver.agreeable

3rd Edingley Cricket Ground, Cotton Mill Lane, Farnsfield, NG22 8EJ

///cemented.brass.rent

GAINSBOROUGH

Secretary

Nick Ward Lowery

m: 07464 614241 e: gainsboroughcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Stuart Menzies
 m:
 07968 826232

 John Tittley
 m:
 07792 272564

 Andrew Tucker
 m:
 07960 470754

Ground

1st/2nd Middlefield Lane, Gainsborough, DN21 1UU

///feathers.downcast.registers

GEDLING & SHERWOOD

Secretary

Peter Guest

m: 07986 585191 e: gandscc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Steve Carmody
 m:
 07796 134338

 Jake Daly
 m:
 07380 196185

Ground

1st/2nd Regatta Way, West Bridgford, NG2 5AT

///blog.about.tame

GRASSMOOR WORKS

Secretary

Alan Woolven

m: 07542 505844 e: gwcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Alan Ward m: 07742 237481 Ian Woolven m: 07759 569132

Ground

1st/2nd North Wingfield Road, Grassmoor, S42 5HB

///rooting.charging.detriment

HARTHILL

Secretary

Andy Rossington

m: 07841 377213 e: harthillcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Alan Page m: 07759 768018 Chris Page m: 07712 348617

Ground

1st/2nd Thorpe Road, Harthill, S26 7YF

///interests.gather.unlisted

KILLAMARSH JUNIORS

Secretary

Adam Burgess

m: 07894 111434 e: kjcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Carl Bennett
 m:
 07852 151521

 Jamie Hurst
 m:
 07587 542332

 Charles Parsons
 m:
 07989 855017

Grounds

1st/2nd 284 Sheffield Road, Killamarsh, S21 1ED

///views.fearfully.prefer

3rd Mount St. Marys College, College Road, Spinkill, **S21 3YL**

///fabricate.shiny.snowstorm

KIVETON PARK COLLIERY

Secretary

Richard Grainger

m: 07714 205476 e: kpccc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

lan Briggs m: 07525 944831

Ground

1st/2nd Stone Close, Kiveton Park, \$26 6SQ

///succeed.money.proclaims

I ANGWITH

Secretary

Adam Parsons

m: 07815 649890 e: langwithcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Lee Rodgers
 m:
 07891 766893

 Lee Thompson
 m:
 07444 008752

 Mark Wakeling
 m:
 07525 690286

Ground

1st Main Street, Langwith, NG20 9HD

///pipes.reinstate.stardom

MANSFIELD

Secretary

Kevin Wright

m: 07834 420582 e: mansfieldcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Tom Machin
 m:
 07852 508505

 Dave Williams
 m:
 07719 654659

 Ben Wright
 m:
 07971 864837

Ground

1st/2nd Rosemary Street, Chesterfield Road South, Mansfield, NG19 7BH

///prompting.attend.data

MANSFIELD HOSIERY MILLS

Secretary

Jill Smallwood

m: 07751 028796 e: mhmcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Kyle Garside m: 07915 195240

Grounds

1st/2nd Huthwaite Road, Sutton-in-Ashfield, NG17 2TF

///about.edges.parks

3rd Blackwell CC, Primrose Hill, Blackwell, **DE55 5JF**

///bless.rainy.vote

MILTON

Secretary

Andrea Hillman

m: 07770 747104 e: miltoncc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Jason Sharp
 m:
 07900 551401

 Dominic Startup
 m:
 07967 397142

 Richard Wolstenholme
 m:
 07435 424145

Ground

1st/2nd Main Street, Milton, NG22 OPP

///paraded.piston.cement

MISTERTON

Secretary

Peter Snow

m: 01427 753039 e: mistertoncc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Chris Bramham
 m:
 07940 456673

 Darren Emmingham
 m:
 07909 527715

 David Manning
 m:
 07557 961547

Ground

1st Marsh Lane, Misterton, DN10 4DL

///options.code.ushering

NOMADS

Secretary

Max Cieslelski

m: 07973 363472 e: nomadscc@bdcl.og.uk

Cancellations

 James Barber
 m:
 07548 901371

 Liam Hopkinson
 m:
 07307 582780

 Andy Robinson
 m:
 07517 339577

Ground

1st Tilford Road, Newstead Village, NG15 0BS

///pulps.challenge.towel

NORTH WHEATLEY WITH LEVERTON

Secretary

James Nixon

m: 07557 851870 e: nwlcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Wayne Ellis m: 07966 459172
Paul Knight m: 07568 613061

Ground

1st/2nd Sturton Road, South Wheatley, DN22 9DH

///running.uptake.beauty

ORDSALL BRIDON

Secretary

Gareth Jones

m: 07468 621505 e: obcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Wayne Spooner
 m:
 07805 256758

 Jonathan Tomlinson
 m:
 07572 529093

Ground

1st/2nd Edgbaston Drive, Ordsall, Retford, DN22 7EE

///loves.certified.shared

PAPPLEWICK & LINBY

Secretary

Stephanie Roberts

m: 07702 884347 e: pandlcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Sam Ogrizovic
 m:
 07760 888047

 Robin Rhodes
 m:
 07803 617306

 Paul Roberts
 m:
 07850 081998

Grounds

1st/2nd Hall Lane, Papplewick, NG15 8FW

///monitors.camcorder.clear

3rd Notts & Arnold Amateur CC, Bestwood Village, NG6 8UJ

///slang.ship.speaks

RETFORD

Secretary

George Buchanan

m: 07860 438988 e: retfordcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Mark Bull
 m:
 07736 935242

 Jono Mattioli
 m:
 07961 317210

 Mark Shevill
 m:
 07701 345524

Ground

1st/2nd Cricket Field Lane, Retford, DN22 7LA

///topped.stale.strain

ROCKWARE

Secretary

Carl Lake

m: 07809 383440 e: rockwarecc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Daniel Cookson
 m:
 07973 530176

 Nathan Parry
 m:
 07540 379016

Ground

1st Sandy Lane, Worksop, S80 3ET

///detail.career.frames

SHERWOOD COLLIERY

Secretary

Daniel Parks

m: 07772 435661 e: sccc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Tim Allsopp **m:** 07429 014657 Phil Bartram **m:** 07791 662707

Ground

1st/2nd Debdale Lane, Mansfield Woodhouse, NG19 7NS

///estate.dare.jabs

SHIREBROOK

Secretary

Mark Warriner

m: 07530 490948 e: shirebrookcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Damion Colley
 m:
 07383 863933

 Dean Walker
 m:
 07452 856866

 Tom Warriner
 m:
 07454 822825

Ground

1st Recreation Drive, Shirebrook, NG20 8BX

///undivided.profited.investors

SNEINTON

Secretary

Javid Khaliq

m: 07972 238587 e: sneintoncc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Ubaid Khaliq
 m:
 07963 775048

 Junaid Mahmood
 m:
 07918 559626

 Usman Mohyuddin
 m:
 07496 299480

Ground

1st Burton Road, Gedling, NG4 2QG

///penny.brick.estate

TEVERSAL

Secretary

Andrew Gregson

m: 07950 463567 e: teversalcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Andy Hauton **m:** 07914 964463 Michael Gregory **m:** 07753 774962

Ground

1st Carnarvon Street, Teversal, NG17 3HL ///dust.pool.bounty

THORESBY COLLIERY

Secretary

Martin Cheshire

m: 07896 742669 e: tccc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Ben Marson
 m:
 07742 741012

 Simon Pallant
 m:
 07795 445883

 Alistair Walker
 m:
 07715 407391

Grounds

1st/2nd Fourth Avenue, Edwinstowe, NG21 9NS

///character.prosper.trio

3rd Edwinstowe CC, Forest Corner, Edwinstowe, NG21 9RN

///uniform.believer.repayment

THORESBY PARK

Secretary

Katie Hulme

m: 07989 962224 e: tpcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Mick Cuthbert
 m:
 07814 051163

 Paul Hulme
 m:
 07974 696999

 Dan Malbon
 m:
 07572 690614

Ground

1st Thoresby Hall, Thoresby Park, Thoresby, NG22 9WH

///resolves.fixture.curving

Accessed by electronic gate – code required from Secretary or Captain

TODWICK

Secretary

Elizabeth Wainwright

m: 07784 546756 e: todwickcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Chris Booth
 m:
 07957 814330

 Jack Bryan
 m:
 07388 937550

 James Cooper
 m:
 07792 658699

Ground

1st Goosecarr Lane, Todwick, S26 1HG

///excusing.tracks.rental

WADWORTH

Secretary

Gareth Hobson

m: 07581 226695 e: wadworth@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Mark Limb
 m:
 07484 811220

 Danny Powell
 m:
 07940 149806

Ground

1st Wadworth Hall Lane, Wadworth, DN11 9BH

///informer.dragons.rainfall

WALESWOOD SPORTS

Secretary

Susan Long

m: 07931 607677 e: wscc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Gary Lomas m: 07419 295953 Dan Spotwood m: 07557 802836

Ground

1st/2nd Cricket Field Lane, Waleswood, S26 5RL

///valuables.coconut.shuffles

WELBECK

Secretary

Adam Clarke

m: 07974 635012 e: welbeckcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Troy Davies
 m:
 07814 363084

 Lewis Kavanagh-Jones
 m:
 07530 369050

 Richard Stroh
 m:
 07825 334465

Grounds

1st-4th Sookholme Road, Sookholme, NG19 8LL

///superbly.geologist.describe

WHITWELL

Secretary

David Whitehouse

m: 07879 558836 e: whitwellcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Alan Draycott
 m:
 07975 787855

 Christian Foster
 m:
 07590 682774

 Craig Sadler
 m:
 07501 365378

Ground

1st/2nd Butt Hill, Station Road, Whitwell, S80 4RR

///typist.templates.sourced

WISETON

Secretary

Simon Hastings

m: 07877 237972 e: wisetoncc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Tim Larden
 m:
 07734 232999

 Robert Wyles
 m:
 07857 268880

Ground

1st/2nd Wiseton Hall, Wiseton, **DN10 5AE**

///afraid.goals.candy

WOODSETTS COMMUNITY

Secretary

Laura Dickens

m: 07576 388003 e: wccc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

Steve Dye m: 07766 202563 Andrew Lowe m: 07576 388003

Ground

1st Gildingwells Road, Woodsetts, S81 8QA

///polo.engraving.splashes

WORKSOP

Secretary

David Hancocks

m: 07515 351918 e: worksopcc@bdcl.org.uk

Cancellations

 Liam Cairns
 m:
 07958 422704

 Nick Mathews
 m:
 07801 990733

 Oliver Titterington
 m:
 07825236726

Ground

1st/2nd Central Avenue, Worksop, S80 1EN

///brass.pasta.again

3rd Firbeck Cricket Club, Doncaster Road, Costhorpe, **S81 9QR**

///reinvest.roses.cost

Unforeseen Matters

In all competitions, any matters which may arise which are not provided for under these rules (except those relating to the laws of the game) shall be dealt with by the League Management Committee whose decision shall be final and binding on all parties concerned.

The Management Committee, in their reasonable opinion, has the right to add, amend or delete rules between AGMs where such changes are required to ensure that the League operates within the law or in line with ECB or other appropriate directives.

Any changes arising from this clause will be communicated to Member Club secretaries and apply as soon as such communication is delivered.

Shaded Areas denote additions or amendments from the previous publication.

Constitution

1 Name

This combination shall be known as the Bassetlaw & District Cricket League.

2 Purpose

To foster and promote participation in the sport of Cricket within the Bassetlaw Community. To organise cricket clubs who wish to participate into an appropriate number of Divisions plus Cup Competitions and to manage these competitions and arrangements.

3 Affiliation

- 3.1 The League requires that all clubs playing in the Bassetlaw & District Cricket League are affiliated to the England and Wales Cricket Board through a primary affiliation to the County Cricket Board in which they reside. Clubs which reside outside of Nottinghamshire can secure a secondary affiliation to the Recreational Cricket Advisory Group on a purely voluntary basis.
- 3.2 The League requires that its member clubs shall ensure that members abide by the Laws of Cricket and playing, and non-playing members abide by the League's Code of Conduct which incorporates the Spirit of Cricket.
- 3.3 The League requires that all its member clubs shall adopt and implement the ECB 'Safe Hands – Cricket's Policy for Safeguarding Children' and any future versions of the policy.
- 3.4 The League requires that all its member clubs shall adopt and implement the ECB Cricket Equality Policy and any future versions of this policy.

4 Membership

- 4.1 Applications from clubs desiring admission to the League must be in writing and received by the League Secretary by the last day of September in the year preceding that in which they wish to take part.
 - Applications from existing clubs desiring admission of additional teams to the League must be in writing and received by the League Secretary by the last day of November in the year preceding that in which they wish to take part.
- 4.2 Before a club is accepted into the League the League Management Committee will need to be satisfied with its status, facilities, and ability to provide active Umpires as per Rule 12.15, Section B. A member of the League Management Committee will inspect the facilities before acceptance.
 - The League Management Committee will decide to which Division of the League an applicant club will be admitted having considered the above criteria.

- 4.3 Clubs wishing to resign from the League, or any Division of the League shall give notice in writing to the League Secretary by the last day in November.
- 4.4 Clubs and individual teams resigning during the season shall be fined as follows:

League Matches £10.00 for each outstanding non-fulfilled fixture.

Cup Matches £50.00 for each outstanding non-fulfilled fixture.

For the avoidance of doubt, the season is judged to have begun after the

publication of the fixtures.
 The League Management Committee reserves the right to ask any club to resign if, in its opinion, the general conduct or appointments of such a club do not

- if League Management Committee reserves the right to ask any club to resign if, in its opinion, the general conduct or appointments of such a club do not satisfy the requirements of the League. Fourteen days' notice of a complaint must be given in writing to the Secretary of the club affected.
- 4.6 Any club ceasing to be a member of the League shall at once forfeit any rights to participate in the assets of the League.

5 Finance

- 5.1 The BDCL is a not-for-profit organisation and subject to these Rules, the League Management Committee shall have the responsibility for the management of all its funds, property, and affairs.
- 5.2 The funds of the League shall be dealt with by and through an account with a bank in the name of the League. The League Chair, League Secretary and League Treasurer shall be authorised signatories.
- 5.3 The financial year shall end on 30th November, after which the accounts shall be inspected by an Independent Examiner who shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting.
- 5.4 The entrance fee for any newly admitted club shall be £35.00, to be paid not later than 31 March in any year.
- 5.5 The yearly subscription from each club shall be £35.00, to be paid not later than 31 March in any year.
- 5.6 If the income from subscriptions is insufficient to meet League expenses, a further levy may be made on each club.
- 5.7 Honoraria, if any, to be paid to any individuals shall be agreed annually by the League Management Committee.

6 Officers

6.1 The officers of the League shall consist of The President, Vice-President, Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Statistician, and the Umpires Appointment Secretary, all of whom, except for the President and Vice-President, shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting.

- 6.2 The President and Vice-President shall be elected by the League Management Committee and during the year of office and for one year thereafter shall be entitled to serve on the League Management Committee.
- 6.3 Life Members and Life Vice-Presidents may be elected by the League Management Committee in recognition of past services to the League, the former being entitled to attend meetings of the League Management Committee.
- 6.4 A Handbook Editor, an Independent Examiner, a Lead Sponsorship Officer, a Match Administrator, and a Press/Advertising Officer shall be appointed by the League Management Committee from its own elected members or by co-opting non-voting officers.

7 General Meetings

- 7.1 The Annual General Meeting shall be held on the last Sunday in January each year.
- 7.2 Nominations of officers and members of the League Management Committee must be received by the League Secretary not later than 28 clear days before the date of the Annual General Meeting. If the number of nominations makes it necessary, the election of such officers and members shall be by ballot at the Annual General Meeting.
- 7.3 Proposals for alterations to these rules to be considered at the Annual General Meeting must be received by the League Secretary not later than 28 clear days before the date of the Annual General Meeting. Proposals for such alterations may also be made by the League Management Committee and the Bassetlaw & District Umpires Association.
- 7.4 Ten clear days' notice of the Annual General Meeting, which will include nominations of officers and members of the League Management Committee and proposals for alterations to these rules, shall be forwarded to each club.
- 7.5 Not more than two representatives of each Member Club shall attend the Annual General Meeting, only one of whom shall be entitled to vote on all issues generally transacted at such a meeting.
- 7.6 The President, or Immediate Past President, or if both these officers shall be absent, a deputy appointed by the meeting shall preside at an AGM and shall have a casting vote.
- 7.7 If it is thought desirable that only certain Member Clubs should vote on a certain matter, this restriction shall only be permitted with the specific consent of the Annual General Meeting.
- 7.8 Any club failing to be represented at the Annual General Meeting shall receive a sanction as determined by the League Management Committee.

- 7.9 If after the election of the members of the League Management Committee at the Annual General Meeting any alterations duly made under Rule 7.3 at the same Annual General Meeting affect the constitution of the League Management Committee, then these alterations will take affect from the date of the next Annual General Meeting unless an Extraordinary General Meeting is called under Rule 7.11 to authorise an earlier implementation.
- 7.10 All competitions will be played under the rules approved by the Annual General Meeting.
- 7.11 The rules applicable to the Annual General Meeting, except for Rule 7.1 shall also apply to an Extraordinary General Meeting whenever such a meeting is convened

8 League Management Committee

- 8.1 Subject to these Rules, the League Management Committee shall have the responsibility for the management of the League, its funds, property, and affairs
- 8.2 The League shall be governed by the League Management Committee consisting of the officers named in Rules 6.1 and 6.3, and thirteen representatives from all clubs in the League who shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting. One representative of the Bassetlaw & District Umpires Association appointed by that Association and one representative of the Recreational Cricket Advisory Group, shall serve on this Committee.
- 8.3 Not more than one representative from any one club shall serve on this Committee, except for the officers named in Rules 6.1 and 6.3.
- 8.4 Nine members shall form a quorum.
- 8.5 At least four clear days' notice of such meetings shall be given.
- 8.6 Members of this Committee shall not be allowed to vote on questions arising out of matters in which their clubs are concerned.
- 8.7 Travelling expenses of members of this Committee, over and above those expected in the normal course of their duties, shall be paid by the League.
- 8.8 Any member of the League Management Committee failing to attend two consecutive meetings without reasonable cause shall forfeit their seat which shall be filled by the Committee at the next meeting. The member so appointed shall hold office only until the next Annual General Meeting.
- 8.9 The League Management Committee may appoint such sub-committees as they may from time to time consider necessary.
- 8.10 A Vice-Chair shall be appointed by the League Management Committee from amongst their numbers at the first Committee meeting after the Annual General Meeting.

- 8.11 The Chair, or in their absence, the Vice-Chair, or if both are absent, a deputy appointed by the League Management Committee shall preside at all League Management Committee Meetings and shall have a casting vote.
- 8.12 The League Management Committee will meet, unless otherwise communicated, on each second Tuesday of the month.

9 Trophies

- 9.1 Each winning club shall be responsible for the insurance of the trophy it holds during the ensuing twelve months. Clubs will be advised of the value of each trophy for insurance purposes.
- 9.2 Each trophy must be returned in clean condition to the Appointed League Engraver not later than the date requested by the Awards Manager in each year. Each club failing to observe this rule shall receive a fine of £75.00.

10 Return of Circulated Documents

Documents distributed by the League Secretary or other League Management Committee members by online forms/e-mail and/or post should be returned by the timescales provided.

Failure by a club to return a circulated document related to the administration of the League by the due date shall receive a fine of £10.00.

11 Fines

Clubs will have 14 days in which to pay any fines issued by the League Treasurer.

Any club failing to comply shall receive a further fine of £25.00 per 14-day period from the date of the original fine, that the fine remains unpaid.

12 Winding-up

- 12.1 The members may vote to wind up the League at a properly convened Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting. Three quarters of all member clubs shall form a quorum.
- 12.2 The League Management Committee will be responsible for the orderly winding up of the League's affairs.
- 12.3 After settling all liabilities of the League, the League Management Committee shall dispose of the net assets remaining to the Recreational Cricket Advisory Group.

Generic Rules

1 Insurance

- 1.1 Each club is strongly recommended to ensure that it has Public Liability, including employer's Liability, Insurance cover for a minimum of £2,000,000.
- 1.2 Clubmark Accredited Clubs, or those wishing to gain Clubmark Accreditation, will need to possess the minimum amount as specified by the ECB.

2 Ground Criteria

- 2.1 Clubs wishing to participate in the Championship, must adhere to the following ten requirements, which must be in place by the last day of November in the year/season in which the right to promotion to the Championship has been earned:
 - The outfield shall be flat with the grass cut short. The minimum distance to all boundaries should be 35 yards (32 metres).
 - There should be sightscreens at each end of effective height and width.
 They should be clean and white (or eggshell blue).
 - iii. Boundaries to be clearly defined with a continuous rope or white line.
 - A competent scorer should be available for all matches. The scoring accommodation should be separate, with a manual or electronic system accessible to the scorers.
 - Ground equipment and requirements should consist of light and heavy rollers; wheel-on or sheet covers; correct marking of pitches; re-marking of lines between innings; sawdust available.
 - vi. Where possible dressing rooms should be adjacent to the playing area, lockable, clean, and decorated, of suitable size (100 ft2. (9.3m2) minimum), with sufficient seating to accommodate both teams. Wash hand-basins and mirrors should also be available.
 - vii. Ladies' and Gents' toilets should be available. They should be clean, convenient and contain hand-basins and hand driers or towels.
 - viii. The umpires' room should be separate and secure with sufficient clothes hanging facilities.
 - ix. Club facilities should comply where possible with current Health and Food regulations.
 - x. A first-aid kit should be available.

2.2 Should the ten requirements as stated above not be fulfilled by the date stated, promotion to the Championship will not be accepted by the League Management Committee.

3 The Pitch

- 3.1 The pitch must be properly prepared before the toss and shall not be changed during the match unless it becomes unfit for play, and then only with the consent of both Captains.
- 3.2 No match may be played on an artificial pitch.
- 3.3 The wickets should be pitched so that the centre of each stump is in line with the back edge of the bowling crease.
- 3.4 Dots should be placed on either side of the pitch, in line with the return creases and 5ft (1.52m), in front of the popping creases, to indicate the start of the danger area of the bowler's follow through.
- 3.5 Marks should be placed on the bowling crease, 1ft (0.3m) either side of the middle stump, to indicate, in conjunction with Rule 8.1.4, the restricted area.
- 3.6 Prior to the toss of the coin the captain of the home team should indicate to their opposite number the roller(s) available for use between innings.
- 3.7 Between innings the ends of the pitch must be swept, and the creases remarked as required.

4 The Square

Adequate repair of bowler's foot holes on used pitches should be carried out during the preparation of the ground.

5 Boundaries

- 5.1 The boundaries on all grounds must have a boundary line clearly defined with a rope or a white line and plastic markers for extra visibility.
 - Metal or wooden stakes are not allowed due to the possible risk of injury to a fielder through their use.
- 5.2 No part of any sightscreen should be within the field of play.
 - To comply with the MCC Laws of Cricket 2017, a rope should be placed on the ground around a sightscreen, with sufficient space to allow for the movement of over and around bowling actions, where an obstruction prevents the sightscreen being positioned outside the normal boundary line.

- 5.3 Where the frequent movement of a sightscreen is required the batting side should provide the necessary persons to achieve this with the minimum of delay.
- 5.4 Boundary hits shall count as four runs, except for a ball hit full pitch on to, or clear of, the boundary line shall count six runs, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the captains before the commencement of play.

6 Hospitality

- 6.1 Changing facilities, preferably separate from the players' dressing rooms, should be available for the Umpires and should be secure, clean, and tidy.
 - Clean white coats should be available.
- 6.2 Each club must have adequate sanitary accommodation on the ground and a complete first-aid kit available in the pavilion.
- 6.3 No teas are to be provided. All players and officials shall provide their own sustenance. Hot and cold drinks should be available for players and officials, as required.

7 Clothing

No players shall be allowed to play unless they are wearing recognised white cricket clothing.

8 Match Balls

8.1 All match balls will be stamped with the BDCL logo and must be purchased through League arrangements as communicated. Each club shall provide its own balls for use when fielding.

Championship only

- 8.2 The match ball shall be new and must be:
 - · Reader Special County Imperial Crown
 - Reader Sovereign

Division 1 and below

- 8.3 The match ball may not be new and must be one of the following:
 - Reader Special County Imperial Crown
 - Reader Sovereign
 - Reader County Match

- 8.4 The balls (match and spare) to be used must be submitted to and approved by the Umpires and Captains before the toss of the coin when indication shall be given as to which is the first ball.
 - In all Divisions, the spare ball must not be new.
- 8.5 If and when the spare or any subsequent ball(s) are brought into play, they shall be brought into play in their present condition.

9 Fixtures

- 9.1 All fixtures shall be played on the appointed date, as arranged, and published by the League Management Committee.
- 9.2 A club's league fixtures will take precedence over any other match.
- 9.3 The League Management Committee will publish the provisional League Fixtures to all clubs by the end of December each year. A consultation period of 14 days will then follow whereby amendments may be made.
 - Clubs are to be reminded not to publicise or share the provisional League Fixtures as any amendment can affect multiple clubs.
 - After the consultation period has elapsed, the Final Fixtures will be made available to Clubs via email and published on Play-Cricket.
- 9.4 Fixtures shall be made for each Saturday between April and September. Bank Holidays during the season shall be used as required.
- 9.5 Where, for any reason, there are more than twelve teams in a Division, the clubs in that Division shall be balloted to ascertain whether each team should play each other twice, both home and away, or should fulfil a reduced programme of fixtures arranged by the Match Administrator. Should a ballot be tied, the League Management Committee shall decide on the number of fixtures to be arranged.
- 9.6 Any request for a change of fixture after the publication of the fixtures, must be submitted in writing to the Match Administrator not less than ten days before the date of the proposed change. Such changes must have the sanction of the League Management Committee who will only allow them in exceptional circumstances.
- 9.7 The League Secretary will notify clubs of dates on which a Representative XI may be required. No player selected to play for the League in a representative match will be allowed to play in any competition within the League's jurisdiction on the day of that match without the express permission of the League Management Committee.

10 Cancellation of Matches (Adverse Playing Conditions)

- 10.1 A cancellation due to adverse playing conditions may be made by the home club only with the verbal agreement of the away club (email and text messages may only be used as confirmation of a verbal agreement).
- 10.2 If the away team do not agree to the cancellation and wish to travel, both teams must regard the game as being 'on and to be played' and the umpires will then make their usual decisions at the start of the game as to whether play should begin in keeping with League Rules and the Laws of the game. If no umpires are present, the captains shall have sole authority. If the captains disagree, the match shall be cancelled. The visiting team will be responsible for all Umpire Expenses).
- 10.3 Any such cancellation shall be made no later than 3 hours prior to the scheduled start time.
- 10.4 Failure by the home club to contact the away club to seek agreement that the game is cancelled due to adverse playing conditions, and the away team arrive at the ground believing the game is to be played, shall receive a fine of £10.00, with the match result counted as a 'Win' for the opposition.
- 10.5 The appointed Umpires must be informed not later than 2 hours prior to the scheduled start time.

11 Conceeding of Matches

 ${\bf 11.1} \quad \hbox{Any club failing to fulfil a League engagement, may face the following sanctions:} \\$

1st Offence £10.00 fine and a 10-point deduction.

Subsequent offences will face additional sanctions as determined by the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.

All match results will be deemed as 'Conceded'.

11.2 Any club failing to fulful a Cup engagement will face the following sanction:

All Offences £50.00 fine

All match results will be deemed as 'Conceded'

- 11.3 Any team which, having arrived at the ground along with the opposition and the officials, that either refuses to play or concedes the match, will be referred to the League Management Committee.
- 11.5 For each club affected by a cancellation under this rule, for each occasion they will receive a £10.00 reduction in subscriptions for the following season.

12 Match Team Cards

- 12.1 Each side must complete the Match Team Card before the start of the match identifying any player in the U13, U15 or U19 age groups. This requirement also covers any young player taking the field as a substitute fielder.
- 12.2 The Match Team Card must be left with the scorers during the game.

13 Umpires

League umpires will be following the regulations, laid down by the MCC, as per the last publication.

- 13.1 The use of light meters is not permitted.
- 13.2 The BDUA, of which each League Umpire shall be a member, shall maintain a panel of Umpires to which any competent person, whether associated with a member club or not, may be appointed.
- 13.3 Neutral Umpires shall officiate in all matches where possible.
- 13.4 The BDUA shall appoint Umpires from their panel to officiate in all BDCL matches. The appointments will be made by the Umpires' Appointments Secretary.
- 13.5 Should any Umpire be unable to accept, or be unable to fulfil their appointment, they must immediately notify the Umpires' Appointments Secretary who shall appoint a substitute or advise otherwise. Except in extreme and unavoidable circumstances, the Umpires' Appointments Secretary must be informed no later than 2 hours prior to the scheduled start of play.
- 13.6 In the event of the appointed Umpire(s) failing to attend the match, or no Umpires appointed, the captain of the batting side shall use their best endeavours to appoint substitute Umpires who are senior players. If this is not possible, then the captain shall use best endeavours to ensure that juniors stand as Umpire at the striker's end only.
- 13.7 League appointed Umpire(s) have full responsibility and sole authority for the conduct of the game and in deciding whether a game should start, be stopped, or re-started due to unsatisfactory condition of the ground, weather, or light.

- 13.8 If no Umpire (or substitute) is available, Captains take full responsibility and sole authority for the conduct of the game. In deciding whether a game should start, be stopped, or re-started due to unsatisfactory conditions of the ground, weather or light, every attempt should be made to reach an agreement. Bearing in mind that the safety of players is paramount, should an accident occur which is due to unsatisfactory conditions, then the captain could be held liable. When in doubt, or if the captains disagree, then play should not take place. Captains are encouraged to report incidents where the actions of players in terms of their behaviour, language and/or conduct is such, that it is felt that the relevant players should be reported to the League Management Committee under its Code of Conduct.
- 13.9 In the event of a match being cancelled but the appointed Umpires, not having been told of the cancellation, arrive at the ground in time for the scheduled start time, they shall be paid full match expenses by the home club.
- 13.10 There shall be an annual review of the Umpires expenses, carried out by a group constituted by members of the League Management Committee and the BDUA, the findings of which shall be binding.
- 13.11 Any club wishing to join the BDCL, shall provide one Umpire for each team it wishes to enter the League. All such Umpires should be acceptable to the BDUA and should not be drawn from the existing pool of Umpires.
 - The League Management Committee appeals to all existing clubs to make every effort to provide at least one Umpire for each team entered in the League.
- 13.12 Ground conditions, and especially pitches, shall be confidentially assessed by the umpires in consultation who shall submit a report to the League Secretary at their discretion.

14 Scorers & Scoreboard

- 14.1 For all Divisions and under normal circumstances, the scorer should not be a player in the match. However, if no scorer be available, then the scoring duties should be completed by a player in the match from the side batting.
- 14.2 The scorers must accept the umpire's signals and instructions and, though it is no part of their duty to dictate to the umpires, mutual consultation to clear up doubtful points is, always, permissible, and welcome.
- 14.3 The scorers must document the bowler's name if the batter is out bowled, caught, stumped, leg before wicket or hit wicket.
 - The scorers must document the fielder's name if the batter is out caught, stumped, or run out.

- 14.4 After the match and prior to the teams departing the ground it is incumbent upon the two captains to ensure that the scorebook is completed correctly with all the necessary information to comply with Rule 17.
- 14.5 It shall be the responsibility of the batting side to ascertain the details of the score, wickets, and overs from the scorers and to see that the scoreboard is brought up to date with this information at least at the end of every over if no official means of updating the scoreboard is in place.
- 14.6 The scoreboard must always be unobstructed.

15 Late Start & Absent Players

- 15.1 In the event of a late start, notwithstanding Rule 16, Section F or Rule 18, Section G, the Umpires must intimate to the captain(s) of the offending team(s) that a complaint will be made to the League Secretary. In the event of no umpires being present, the captain(s) should make the complaint.
 - The League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee shall have the power to impose a fine not exceeding £20.00 on the offending club(s), with a deduction of one point for each lost over up to a maximum of 5 points.
- 15.2 A minimum of 7 players per side must be present before a game can start. If 8 players are not present within one hour after the scheduled start, the game shall be called off and the Umpire(s) shall report the fact to the League Management Committee. In the event of no umpires being present, the captain(s) should make the report.
- 15.3 If, at the toss of the coin, a player or players have not arrived at the ground the captain should inform their opposite numbers and the Umpires giving the name of any missing player, who may not therefore be changed without the consent of the opposing Captain.

16 Personnel

- 16.1 An incoming batter should pass an outgoing batter on the field of play.
- 16.2 In the case of illness or injury during the game a substitute, or a runner, is allowed of right, and at the discretion of the Umpires for other wholly acceptable reasons.
 - It is a sporting gesture for the batting side to offer a substitute to the fielding side when the latter has nobody available.

17 Notification of Results

Should a fixture be played at a neutral venue, the winners of the match will be deemed the home side.

It is the responsibility of both Captains to ensure that the home team has all the information required to comply with this rule.

17.1 The Home team must record the full result on Play-Cricket on the day of the match.

The result must contain all the information required as per the Result Summary Page, i.e., Result, Won Toss, Team Batted First, $1^{\rm st}$ Inning's Score, Wickets, and Overs, $2^{\rm nd}$ Inning's Score, Wickets, and overs, plus changes to Revised or Scheduled Overs.

The home team has the full responsibility for the submission and correctness of the result.

Home teams failing to comply with this rule may receive a sanction as determined by the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.

17.2 The home teams must submit a photograph of the Match team card, via email, to the Match Administrator within 48 hours of the match.

Home teams failing to comply with this rule may receive a sanction as determined by the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.

17.3 The home team shall be responsible for the submission and confirmation of the full and complete scorecard on Play-Cricket within 48 hours of the completion of the match (midnight on Monday for a Saturday fixture).

Scorecards must contain no errors, i.e., to include all participating players in batting order and the names of players involved with catches, stumpings and run outs. The captain and the wicketkeeper must also be listed.

The home team should ensure that all the details to ensure the validity of the submission of the scorecards is received from the away team. The away team should ensure all the required details to ensure the validity of the submission of the scorecard is provided to the home team.

Home teams failing to comply with this rule may receive a sanction as determined by the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.

17.4 The away team shall check and confirm all match details on Play-Cricket within a further 24 hours (midnight on Tuesday for a Saturday Fixture).

Away teams failing to comply with this rule may receive a sanction as determined by the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.

- 17.5 Any issues submitting any of the above must be communicated to the Match Adminstrator, by email, and before the published deadline for advice and investigation.
- 17.6 In addition to the sanctions listed under Rules 17.1 to 17.5, failure to further comply with any part of this rule, or longstanding issues may result in further sanctions as determined by the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.

18 Net Run Rate/Average Net Run Rate

- 18.1 Only those matches where results are achieved will count for the purpose of a team's net run rate calculations.
- 18.2 A team's average net run rate is calculated by averaging a team's net run rate in all matches over the course of the season.

19 Trophies

19.1 The following trophies shall be awarded to the League Divisional Champions of the respective Divisions at the end of the season, where applicable:

The Worksop Guardian Cup	Championship
The Cliff Willmott Cup	Division 1
The Wigmore Excelsior Cup	Division 2
The John Hall Cup	Division 3
The Bassetlaw Umpires' Cup	Division 4
The Harry A. Spencer Shield	Division 5
The General Refractories Shield	Division 6
The Steetley Works Cup	Division 7

- 19.2 The Mallen Trophy will be awarded to the winner of the John J. Mallen t20 Cup Competition.
- 19.3 The Tomlins Trophy will be awarded to the winner of the Harry Tomlins t20 Cup Competition.

20 Individual Awards

The following awards will be awarded annually, where applicable:

20.1 Divisional Batting Awards

The Wilfred Stocks Award Championship Division 1 The Getcliffe Memorial Award Division 2 The Eric Martin Award Division 3 The Mike Smedley Award Division 4 The John Loates Award Division 5 The Bassetlaw Council Award Division 6 The Graham Tune Award Division 7 The George Raynes Award

20.2 Divisional Bowling Awards

Championship The Jack Baddiley Award Division 1 The Jack Sales Award Division 2 The David French Award Division 3 The Les Jackson Award Division 4 The Harold Middleton Award Division 5 The David Mason Award Division 6 The Alan Bull Award The Blackburn Award Division 7

20.3 Championship Awards

Leading Run Scorer The Fred Welham Award Leading Wicket Taker The Mike Bore Award

20.4 Special Awards

U21 Batter of the Year

U21 Bowler of the Year

U21 All-Rounder of the Year

Female Cricketer of the Year

Wicket Keeper (most dismissals)
Fair Play Award

Services to Club

The Randall Trophy

The Larwood Trophy

The Bruce French Award

The Jenny Gunn Award

The Elvidge Trophy

The Wilkinson Trophy

- 20.5 The Harold Pope Trophy will be awarded to the Player of the Match in the John J. Mallen t20 Final.
- 20.6 The Gordon Mycroft Memorial Cup will be awarded to the Player of the Match in the Harry Tomlins t20 Final.

20.7 Individual Awards for League games shall be awarded to players who fulfil the following qualifications:

Batting 50% of the scheduled games and 400 runs All Divisions Bowling 35 wickets 50 over Divisions

Should no player fulfil the above qualification, then the award shall be awarded

30 wickets 40 over Divisions

to the player with the highest number of runs or the greatest number of wickets. 20.8 Players will qualify for the published League Averages where the following

criteria are met: League Batting

> Championship/Division 1 300 runs Division 2 and 3 250 runs Divisions 4 and below 200 runs

League Bowling

All Divisions 20 wickets

The John J. Mallen t20 Cup

Batting 75 runs Bowling 5 wickets

20.9 Players at Clubs that have outstanding issues with relation to any part of Rule 17 will not be considered.

Laws & Regulations

Players and Officials are not permitted to smoke, vape, or consume alcohol on the field of play whilst a match is in progress.

1 Laws & Regulations

- 1.1 All matches shall be played under MCC Laws except where otherwise stated.
- MCC experimental laws will be implemented by the league in the same season that they are applicable.
- 1.2 ECB recommendations and directives with respect to young players shall be implemented in full for the following:
 - i. Fast Bowling
 - ii. Wearing of Helmets
 - iii. Fielding

www.ecb.co.uk/governance/regulations/non-first-class-regulations.

Age Groups are based on the age of the player at midnight on 31 August in the year preceding the current season.

1.3 Umpires (or Captains where no Umpires are present) and any individual taking responsibility for players are requested to ensure that Rules 1.1, 1.2, 2 and 3 are strictly adhered to in all circumstances.

2 ECB Fast Bowling Directives

The ECB Fast Bowling Directives are as follows and apply for the full season:

Age	Max Overs per Spell	Max Overs per Day
Up to U13	5	10
U14, U15	6	12
U16, U17, U18, U19	7	18

Having completed a spell, the bowler cannot bowl again, from either end, until the equivalent number of overs to the length of their spell having been bowled from the same end.

For these Directives, a fast bowler is defined as a bowler to whom a wicket keeper in the same age group would in normal circumstances stand back to take the ball.

3 Junior Fielding Restrictions

No young player in the Under 15 age group or younger shall be allowed to field closer than 8 yards (7.3 metres) from the middle stump, except behind the wicket on the offside, until the batter has played at the ball. A fielder shall be allowed to move into the restricted area to make a catch or field the ball if they were outside the area when the stroke was made.

For players in the Under 13 age group the distance is 11 yards (10 metres).

These minimum distances apply even if the player is wearing a helmet.

Should a young player in these age groups come within the restricted distance the Umpire (or Captains where no Umpires are present) must stop the game immediately and instruct the fielder to move back.

In addition, any young player in the Under 16 to Under 18 age groups, who has not reached the age of 18, must wear a helmet when fielding within 6 yards (5.5 metres) of the bat, except behind the wicket on the offside. Players should wear appropriate protective equipment whenever they are fielding in a position where they feel at risk.

4 ECB Safety Measures for Helmets within Recreational Cricket

4.1 Players over the age of 18

The ECB strongly recommends that all adult recreational cricketers should wear helmets for certain activities, preferably which meet the most recent British Safety Standard (see below). This recommendation applies to batting against all types of bowling, wicketkeepers standing up to the wicket (who may as an alternative wear face protectors) and fielders fielding closer than eight yards from the batter's middle stump, except behind the wicket on the offside.

4.2 Players under the age of 18

Batters and wicketkeepers standing up to the stumps must wear head protection when playing or practising. That Guidance should be referred to in full for the position in relation to U18's.

5 Child Protection

All safeguarding issues must be emailed to safeguarding@bdcl.org.uk.

5.1 All clubs must recognise that they have a duty of care towards all young players who are representing the club. This duty of care also extends to Leagues that allow the participation of young players in adult teams and the BDCL has adopted the ECB's 'Safe Hands – Cricket's Policy for Safeguarding Children' Policy as part of its commitment to ensuring that the game provides a safe, friendly, and enjoyable experience for children.

The Policy provides the sport with the tools to ensure that the whole game takes up the challenge of continuously improving the participation conditions for children.

Safeguarding and Child Protection is applicable to all, and this must be adhered to.

Safeguarding and Child Protection will not be implemented overnight. It is a long-term process. It is the responsibility of the whole club to implement the appropriate Safeguarding policies and procedures.

- 5.2 The duty of care should be interpreted in two ways:
 - Not to place a young player in a position that involves an unreasonable risk to that young player, taking account of the circumstances of the match and the relative skill of the player.
 - Not to create a situation that places members of the opposing side in a position whereby they cannot play cricket, as they would normally do against adult players.

5.3 Every club MUST:

Nominate a Club Safeguarding Officer who will advise and ensure that Safeguarding is being adhered to in the club. Full contact details for this person must be supplied to the League prior to the start of every season.

Ensure the following club personnel undertake a Vetting Check (DBS):

- Coach/Coaches
- Scorer(s)
- · Colts/Junior Managers
- Age Group Managers
- Open Age Group Team Captains (where players under 18 are regularly in the side)
- Junior Supervisors
- First Aiders
- Physiotherapists
- Medical Support
- Umpires (League Umpires are managed by the BDUA)

Ensure that all other club personnel not listed above undertake a Vetting Check if they are to have regular/unsupervised or sole access to children.

5.4 Every Club Safeguarding Officer MUST:

- Attend a 'Safeguarding and Protecting Children' course.
- Attend the 'Safe Hands' Course.
- Undertake a Vetting Check
- 5.5 Further details can be obtained from:
 - The Recreational Cricket Advisory Group County Safeguarding Officer
 - The ECB Website (www.ecb.co.uk/safeguarding/dbs-checks-ecb-vetting)

Qualification & Registration of Players

The rules under Section D are subject to change at short notice and any regulations posted on the BDCL website will always take precedence. Clubs will be notified by the League Management Committee of any changes, but the final responsibility to ensure full compliance rests unequivocally with the club and its committee. If a player is deemed a professional, then playing them as an amateur is treated as illegally employing a foreign worker.

Guidance on registering U16 players, Loan players and Transfers can be found on the League Website.

1 Qualification

All Players

- 1.1 Before any player may play in a BDCL competition the player must be qualified as follows:
 - Qualified to play for England as defined in the ECB regulations governing the qualification and registration of cricketers (see Rule 1.19) or an Overseas Non-Professional in accordance with Rules 1.9 to 1.16, or a Professional Overseas Player in accordance with Rules 1.17 and 1.18.
 - Have formal membership of a BDCL Club.
 - Be registered with the club via Play-Cricket (see Rule 2).
 - Not be registered with another Saturday League Club.
 - Have no current disciplinary suspension from another cricket authority.
 - Have no outstanding commitments to another club.
 - If on a County ground-staff, be unregistered.
- 1.2 No player who has played Saturday cricket for another club, either inside or outside the BDCL, is permitted to play for a club in the BDCL after 31 July.

This rule does not apply if the club that the player is registered to has fully withdrawn from the BDCL during the season.

This rule does not apply to any U17 player at Midnight on 31 August in the year preceding the current season.

Therefore, this rule does NOT apply to anyone born after 31 August 2004.

1.3 Players who are away from their main place of residence because of full-time education, the services or work may be 'Dual League Registered', but will need to check, as some Leagues do not allow it. The Match Administrator, having

been informed of such an arrangement will not approve a Play-Cricket transfer request from the other League unless requested to by the player, so enabling them to be free to play for their BDCL 'parent' club on their return. Clubs playing in ECB Cup Competitions will need to ensure that such players are not cup-tied.

1.4 The BDCL adopts the ECB Directive on junior cricketers playing in open age matches (see Rule 2.9).

Professional Players (Category 2)

- 1.5 Clubs are restricted to one 'Registered Professional'. Full details of this player must be supplied annually (before they are permitted to play) to the Match Administrator. The club will need to submit Form C4; the player will need to complete Form P4.
- No other playing member in the club, apart from the Registered Professional, shall receive financial support or services or goods of any kind from the club for playing cricket. However, the club may pay a registered playing member to undertake contractual commercial services for the club such as maintenance of premises and playing facilities. The club is required to inform the League Management Committee at the commencement of employment of name(s) and the nature of the contractual commercial services being provided, using Form C4.
- 1.7 No contractual agreement between a registered professional and a club shall be for a period above 12 months nor extend into another cricket season.
- 1.8 Professional players shall be eligible to play for a club's First Eleven, and not below Division 4. Only one Professional or one Overseas player will be permitted per season.

Overseas Players (Category 3)

- 1.9 An Overseas player is one who does not possess a UK Passport nor a visa that gives right of abode and is not time limited. Currently, EU Passport holders who hold a settled status visa may play as a Category 1. Evidence will be needed to support this.
- 1.10 All Overseas (born outside the UK) players MUST be registered with the Match Administrator. The club must submit Form C5; the player must submit Form P5.
- 1.11 Overseas players shall be eligible to play for a club's First Eleven, and not below Division 4. Only one Overseas or one Professional player will be permitted per season.

Eligible Players (formally Category 3E)

1.12 An Eligible player is someone who has spent 210 days or more in the UK in the previous year (specifically 1 April to 31 March). All other cricketers will be regarded as Unqualified (and registered as Category 3). Eligible players will be

registered as Category 1. There is no limit on the number of Eligible players a club may register.

As well as the club submitting Form C3, and the player Form P3, it is a requirement that all clubs be expected to maintain their own register (and keep tab on the 210 days) of who will be regarded as Eligible. Players wrongly registered as Eligible will be treated as illegal immigrants by the Home Office.

Professional Players must be registered using Forms C6 and P6.

- 1.13 Players are regarded as Professional if they have been registered with a professional or semi-professional team (including Pathways and age group from U17 in those teams and clubs) in the four years prior to entering the UK, if they have received payment (in kind) including travel and accommodation in the past 4 years, if they have used an agent to further opportunities in cricket and if they have played for a national side (U17 upwards) in the previous two years. These players are NOT permitted to play recreational cricket in the UK. The BDCL is obligated to ensure as far as possible that these rules are adhered to. Refer to Rule 1.17.
- 1.14 Players who are not normally resident in the UK but hold a UK passport or are resident with a spousal or an ancestral visa are permitted to play as Category 1. Form C2 must be completed before the player can be officially registered.
- 1.15 For the purposes of all players normally resident overseas (residing in the UK for less than 210 of the year), playing for a club outside the UK in the preceding close season will count as having played in the Current Season.
- 1.16 A U19 player who would ordinarily be registered as an overseas player, but whose exceptional circumstances, in the opinion of the League Management Committee, merits inclusion within the spirit of this rule, will be permitted to play on a purely recreational basis in Division 2 or below, for a club's lowest team.

Professional Overseas Player (Tier 5 Creative and Sporting Visa) (Category 3)

- 1.17 Clubs may obtain the services of one professional overseas player/coach. Clubs must apply to the Border Agency for a sponsor's license and obtain a Tier 5 creative and sporting visa before they can employ an overseas player/coach under the 'points-based managed migration system'. Rules 1.9 to Rule 1.15 still apply. The player must be in possession of a Tier 5 creative and sporting visa before they can be registered.
- 1.18 Professional Overseas players shall be eligible to play for a club's First Eleven, and not below Division 4. Only one Overseas or one Professional player will be permitted per season.

ECB Regulations governing the qualification and registration of cricketers and their qualification to play for England

1.19 Information on overseas players can be found on the ECB website:

Governance – Regulations – Non-First-Class Regulations – Generic Rules and Playing Conditions.

Advice for the registration of Overseas Players by BDCL/ECB/Home Office

1.20 The BDCL is not registered to provide advice on immigration. Clubs receiving NON-UK migrants MUST abide by Home Office immigration policy and law. It is important that clubs check the Home Office website for the latest information, advice, and regulations before taking any actions:

www.gov.uk/guidance/immigration-rules

2 Registration

- 2.1 The League Management Committee has the discretion to reject or remove any registration.
- 2.2 All clubs MUST use the online registration system on Play-Cricket to register players.
- 2.3 All U16 players must have parental consent, which is established on Play-Cricket as part of the registration process. The Match Administrator will not be aware of any such registrations until Parental Consent is granted.
- 2.4 No player shall be registered concurrently with more than one Saturday League club (unless permitted under Rule 1.3 or Rule 4).
- 2.5 The information shall contain the Forename, Surname, Address, Date of Birth, Country of Birth, and the Most Recent Entry into the UK (if Country of Birth is outside of the UK) of all players.
- 2.6 It is the responsibility of clubs to ensure that players' registrations are in the correct category and have been received by the Match Administrator, along with all required documentation, within the required timescales.
 - Failure of a club to register a player in the correct Category may result in a sanction as determined by the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.
 - Players will be deemed as 'unregistered' when a club has not fulfilled the timescales for registration.
- 2.7 Once registered, a player remains registered to that club until either transferred (in accordance with Rule 3) or the registration is removed by either the club or BDCL on Play-Cricket.
- 2.8 The registration of a Category 2 or Category 3 player may be cancelled only with the prior agreement of the League Management Committee, who may agree to a replacement. Any replacement must be registered in accordance with these rules

2.9 Players who are selected in a County U12A squad in Spring for a summer squad or in another squad deemed by ECB Performance Managers to be of a standard above 'District level' or that season are eligible to play Open Age Cricket. This is providing that they are at least 11 years old, are in School Year 7 on 1 September in the year preceding the season. In allowing these players to play in Open Age Cricket it is essential that Clubs and Coaches recognise the 'Duty of Care' obligations towards these young players.

This means boys and girls who are county squad players can play open age cricket if they are in a U12 age group and are a minimum of 11 years old on 1 September of the year preceding the season. District and club players who are not in a county squad must wait until they reach the U13 age group, be in Year 8 and be 12 years old on 1 September of the preceding year before being able to play in any open age group cricket.

Any such breach WILL result in the player(s) being deemed as ineligible.

- 2.10 Registration data will be held electronically by the League Management Committee and made available to the ECB and other Leagues as required.
- 2.11 Registrations will be removed on an annual basis for all Category 1 Eligible, Category 2 and Category 3 players, and any player that has not played within the BDCL in the previous three seasons. In addition, registrations may be removed to maintain the integrity of the Player Registration database; clubs will be advised in such instances. Clubs that wish to retain the registration of such players will be required to re-submit as per these Rules.

Any club playing a UK-born Category 1 player whose registration was removed under this rule, will be deemed as 'Unregistered' for all games subsequently played until the registration is accepted. All other players may be deemed as 'Ineligible'.

3 Transfers

- 3.1 A player may be transferred from one club to another at their request.
- 3.2 A club approached by, or seeking to approach, a member of another club to move or transfer, must notify the player's present club prior to entering any negotiations with the player concerned. Failure by a club to comply with either will result in a ban on registering any new players other than graduates from its own youth system, the length of ban to be decided by the League Management Committee.
- 3.3 A transfer must not be unreasonably withheld, or the request will be dealt with by the League Management Committee.
- 3.4 Transfers must be acknowledged on Play-Cricket by the existing club.
- 3.5 Professional and Overseas players cannot be transferred to another BDCL club in the same season.

- 3.6 Unless a player holds a dual registration, the registration will not be accepted until all other registrations have been removed, should it not be possible to transfer the registration on Play-Cricket.
- 3.7 Players who are registered with BDCL clubs but have not played in the previous season shall automatically become 'free agents'; no acknowledgement will be required on Play-Cricket for such transfers.

4 Loan Players

- 4.1 No loans at all are allowed to or from teams in the Championship and Division 1. Players, who are registered with clubs within the BDCL, may be loaned freely between all teams in Division 2 and below, except that a loan player may only play for the lowest team at a club. However, no loan player, who has played 5 of the last 8 games in a higher division that have commenced for his registered club in the current or previous season can be loaned to a team in a lower division whether for a scheduled or rescheduled fixture. A lower division player may be loaned to a team in higher division with the player's agreement. In the case of this loan, clubs must be mindful of their duty of care to young players playing in a higher division.
- 4.2 There is no restriction on the number of teams a player may be loaned to or on the number of loan players allowed in a particular match. However, no player should replace a home club player who is available and willing to play.
- 4.3 A loan player can play for more than one team over the same weekend.
- 4.4 There shall be no restrictions upon the loan of an U16 (school Year 11 or below) player, who may be loaned freely to any team.
- 4.5 For all scheduled and re-scheduled fixtures, the selection of loan players is subject to Rules 6.1 or Rule 4.1, Section F respectively.
- 4.6 Provided that the proposed loan player is eligible under Rules 4.1 to 4.5 above, no notification is required to, nor consent to be sought from, the opposing Captain for that player to take part in a match. For otherwise ineligible players, please note also Rule 6.1.
- 4.7 Clubs playing in t20 Cup Competitions are permitted to register up to a maximum of three players on loan. Clubs progressing beyond the final of the John J. Mallen t20 Cup Competition into ECB competitions will need to be aware that such players will NOT be eligible to play.
- 4.8 No club will be permitted to play loan players after 31 July.
- 4.9 Players found to be in breach of Rules 4.1 to 4.8 will be deemed ineligible.
- 4.10 The League Management Committee may intervene, without having received an official complaint, and take appropriate action, should they feel that there has been a clear breach of the spirit of the loan system, such as the deliberate strengthening of a team.

4.11 Loan players are required to be registered on Play-Cricket, using the timescales under Rule 5 for the game which they will play. Loan players will be dual registered for both clubs during this time. The dual registration will be removed 72 hours after the match.

5 Timescales

- 5.1 Teams can register players at any point during the year, but they will only be accepted between 1 April and 30 September (if not in breach of Rules 1.2, 2.9 or 4.8).
- 5.2 Category 1 players, who are to be registered to play for clubs in Division 1 and below, and all Cup Competitions, are to have their registrations submitted and accepted prior to the first match they play.
 - At **SHORT NOTICE**, a club may notify the Match Administrator of a pending player registration by emailing details of the player concerned. This **MUST** include the basic details of the player (full name and Date of Birth) and the match details (Division and Match). The player must then have their registration submitted via Play-Cricket before Midnight on the day after the match.
- 5.3 All other players (Category 2, Category 3, and those who are to be registered to play in the Championship), are to have their registration submitted by midnight, on the Thursday prior to the match in which they will first play.

6 Sanctions

- 6.1 The Captains may mutually agree to allow a player, otherwise deemed ineligible by these Rules, to play without reservation. The captain of the team should make the request for such a player to be allowed to play to the captain of the opposing team before the visiting club would reasonably have been expected to travel to the match. Both Captains must acknowledge acceptance of such agreement to the Match Administrator before the match commences.
- 6.2 In all categories players not registered as per these Rules will be deemed as unregistered.
- 6.3 Any team that plays an unregistered player will face a sanction as determined by the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.
 - Should the misdemeanour be deemed necessary of further investigation, or gave the team a distinct advantage, further sanctions will be determined by the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.
 - For Cup matches, the offending team will automatically concede the match.

- 6.4 Clubs playing ineligible player(s) will automatically concede the game.
 - In the event of both teams playing ineligible player(s), neither team will benefit from the award of any additional points because of its opponents' misdemeanour.
 - Further point deductions may be imposed, and financial penalties levied at the discretion of the League Management Committee at their next scheduled meeting.
- 6.5 Clubs found to be in serious breach of these regulations with respect to Player Registration will be dealt with at the discretion of the League Management Committee at their next scheduled meeting.
- 6.6 A club found to be contravening rules relating to the payment of players may, as an ultimate sanction, be expelled from the League. The minimum tariff for related offences shall be the deduction of 20 points per player per match.

7 Spirit of the Rule

The reputation of the club is enhanced if it:

- Is open about any approach to a player of another club, or any approach by a player of another club.
- Does not offer hidden incentives to players.
- Acts within the spirit, as well as the letter, of this rule.

8 Disclaimer

- 8.1 All players will be treated as Amateur unless advised. All clubs therefore give their unconditional confirmation that players, nor player's families, have not already received, and will not receive in the future, any remuneration, payment, expenses, or benefit in kind from their Club, or from any third party, benefactor, sponsor, or any other source.
 - This includes inflated payments for coaching, work on the club's ground or working behind the club's bar, the provision of equipment without charge or at discounted value, payment of travelling expenses to matches or any other benefits in kind enjoyed by the player or their family where the cost is borne by the club, its sponsors, its other players or any third party on the club's behalf.
- 8.2 Upon membership of the BDCL, clubs agree that that the League Management Committee has the right under these rules to require the production for inspection of ANY books or records that it may reasonably wish to view which it believes to be relevant to any matter or dispute that must be carefully considered or investigated and will cooperate fully with any requests made.

Nottinghamshire Recreational Cricket Advisory Panel Disciplinary Regulations

1 Aims & Jurisdiction

- 1.1 The England and Wales Cricket Board (ECB) is committed to maintaining the highest standards of behaviour and conduct in the game of cricket. The Nottinghamshire Countywide Disciplinary Group (NCDG), which operates within the jurisdiction of the ECB, shares this commitment, and takes it very seriously.
- 1.2 These ECB Disciplinary Regulations, incorporating the Code of Conduct and Spirit of Cricket (as set out in paragraph 2) have been adopted by the NCDG and all affiliated Leagues as set out in Rule 1.3 and are intended to provide guidance and ensure uniformity in dealing with any alleged breach of the Code of Conduct.
- 1.3 The Disciplinary Regulations shall be complied with by all those who participate in the BDCL, MDCL, NPL and the SNCL, including players, clubs, club officials, club members, the League, Representatives of the League, match officials and any other person or body who is from time to time engaged in cricket related activities under the auspices of the League. (For the purposes of paragraph 2 'players' shall be deemed to include other participants in the context of an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct.
- 1.4 Subject to the mutual recognition provisions (at paragraph 9), the NCDG shall be responsible for the enforcement and administration of the Disciplinary Regulations in relation to participants registered to our Leagues and/or participating in cricket-related activities under their auspices. All participants, by virtue of their registration with their respective League (whether directly or via a club) and/or participation in cricket-related activities under the auspices of our Leagues, agree to be bound by the Disciplinary Regulations.
- 1.5 All participants are required to cooperate with the NCDG regarding discipline. Without prejudice to the generality of this requirement, every club shall take all reasonable steps to ensure the proper conduct of its participants in accordance with the Disciplinary Regulations and shall not act in any way which is prejudicial or detrimental to the interests of the game of cricket.
- 1.6 There is nothing in the Disciplinary Regulations preventing or discouraging clubs from applying additional or stronger penalties regarding breaches of the Code of Conduct beyond those set out in the Disciplinary Regulations, whether penalties may apply under the Disciplinary Regulations. To this end, it is

- important that clubs have their own code of conduct and disciplinary procedures in place.
- 1.7 At all times it is to be remembered that the core aim of the Disciplinary Regulations is to maintain the highest standards of behaviour and conduct in the game of cricket. The procedures detailed in the Disciplinary Regulations are intended to be fair, straightforward, and proportionate to the needs of our Leagues and participants, respecting fundamental principles of natural justice and fairness but recognising that those involved with the procedures will not typically be, and do not need to be, legally qualified. Therefore, if the principles of natural justice and fairness are not infringed, minor practical or technical points will not serve to invalidate the procedure or any decisions or findings under the Disciplinary Regulations.
- 1.8 In the event that any incident or other matter occurs which is not provided for by the Disciplinary Regulations (whether it relates to conduct, jurisdiction, procedure, or penalty), then the Chair of the NCDG, or their nominated deputy, or the relevant League's Disciplinary Chair may take such action as considered appropriate in the circumstances, considering the specific circumstances and the principles of natural justice and fairness.
- 1.9 In the event that any alleged breach of the Code of Conduct falls under any other relevant ECB regulations (as may from time-to-time be in force), such as the ECB Safeguarding Complaints and Disciplinary Procedure, or is subject to investigation by the police or other public authority (or analogous body), or is subject to any other legal/regulatory process, the Discipline Chair or their nominated deputy or the relevant League's Disciplinary Chair, may temporarily suspend the procedure under the Disciplinary Regulations.
- 1.10 For the purpose of clarity:
 - i. Leagues will deal with Level 1 and Level 2 offences (except appeals)
 - ii. The NCDG will deal with Level 3 and Level 4 offences
 - iii. The NCDG will deal with all appeals for Level's 1-4 offences inclusive

2 Code of Conduct

- 2.1 Captains are always responsible for ensuring that play is conducted within the Spirit of Cricket (as set out in Rule 3) as well as within the Laws.
- 2.2 Players and all participants must always accept the umpire's decision. Players must not show dissent at the umpire's decision or react in a provocative or disapproving manner towards another player or spectator.
- 2.3 Players etc. shall not intimidate, assault, or attempt to intimidate or assault an umpire, another participant or spectator.
- 2.4 Players etc. shall not use crude and/or abusive language, nor make offensive gestures or hand signals, nor deliberately distract an opponent.

- 2.5 Players etc. shall not use language or gestures that offend, insult, humiliate, intimidate, threaten, disparage, or vilify another person based on that person's (or that person's perceived) age, race, religion, sexual orientation, colour, descent or national or ethnic origin.
- 2.6 Players etc. shall not use or in any way be concerned in the use or distribution of illegal drugs or other criminal activity.
- 2.7 Participants shall not make any public or media comment, which is prejudicial or detrimental to the interests or reputation of other participants or the game of cricket in general. In this instance, media shall include (but not necessarily be limited to) press, radio, television, external websites, club websites, social networking sites and club match programmes. Nothing in this provision shall prevent any comment which constitutes honest opinion regarding cricketing matters, and which is made in a fair and respectful manner.
- 2.8 Participants shall not publicly disclose or comment upon any alleged breach of this Code of Conduct.
- 2.9 Participants shall not act in a manner which is against the Spirit of Cricket, otherwise improper, or prejudicial or detrimental to the interests or reputation of our Leagues or the game of cricket.
- 2.10 Failure to comply with the provisions of the Code of Conduct may lead to disciplinary action, irrespective of a proven breach being related to a match not under the jurisdiction of the League.

3 Spirit of Cricket

Cricket is a game that owes much of its unique appeal to the fact that it should be played not only within its Laws, but also within the Spirit of the game. Any action which is seen to abuse this spirit causes injury to the game itself. The major responsibility for ensuring the spirit of fair play rests with the captains.

There are two Laws which place the responsibility for a team's conduct firmly on the captain:

- i. Responsibility of Captains
 - The captains are always responsible for ensuring that play is conducted within the Spirit of the Game as well as within the Laws.
- ii. Player's Conduct

In the event of any player failing to comply with the instructions of an umpire, criticising their decision by word or action, showing dissent, or generally behaving in a manner which might bring the game into disrepute, the umpire concerned shall in the first place report the matter to the other umpire and to the player's captain, requesting the latter to act.

4 Fair & Unfair Play

According to the Laws, the umpires are the sole judges of fair and unfair play. The umpires may intervene at any time, and it is the responsibility of the captain to act where required.

- 4.1 The umpires are authorised to intervene in cases of:
 - . Time wasting
 - ii. Damaging the pitch
 - iii. Dangerous or unfair bowling
 - iv. Tampering with the ball
 - v. Any other action that they consider to be unfair
- 4.2 The Spirit of Cricket involves RESPECT for:
 - i. Your opponents
 - ii. Your own captain or team
 - iii. The role of the umpires
 - iv. The game's traditional values
- 4.3 It is against the Spirit of Cricket:
 - i. To dispute an umpire's decision by word, action, or gesture
 - ii. To direct abusive language towards an opponent or umpire
 - iii. To indulge in cheating or any sharp practice, for instance:
 - a. to appeal knowing the batter is not out
 - b. advances towards an umpire in an aggressive manner when appealing
 - seeks to distract an opponent either verbally or by harassment with persistent clapping or unnecessary noise under the guise of enthusiasm and motivation of one's own side

5 Violence

There is no place for any act of violence on the field of play.

6 Players

Captains and umpires together set the tone for the conduct of a cricket match. Every player is expected to make an important contribution to this.

7 Breaches & Reporting

For clarity, all initial reports of breach of the Code of Conduct must be sent to the Secretary of the League responsible for the match.

- 7.1 Any participant in breach of the Code of Conduct shall be liable to penalties in the manner prescribed in the Disciplinary Regulations.
- 7.2 A breach of the Code of Conduct will normally be categorised as Level 1, 2, 3 or 4. as set out in Rule 6.
- 7.3 Reporting of Breaches by Umpires:

In relation to any alleged breach of the Code of Conduct subject to a report by an umpire, the following steps must be taken:

- On the day of the alleged breach prior to leaving the ground, the reporting umpire must advise as many as possible of the player, their captain, and an executive of the player's club, of the alleged breach.
- ii. As soon as reasonably practicable (and no more than 24 hours of the end of the match), the reporting umpire must notify the Secretary of the relevant League, or their nominated deputy, of the alleged breach.
- iii. Within 72 hours of the end of the match, the reporting umpire must submit a written report of the alleged Breach, preferably by email, using the NCDG discipline form to the Secretary of the relevant League, or their nominated deputy.
- iv. If the written report is available prior to leaving the ground, the reporting umpire should show to the player and their captain, who may submit comment. If the written report is not available prior to leaving the ground, the offending player shall be given a reasonable opportunity to make a response to the report.

7.4 Reporting of Breaches by Participants:

- i. Any allegation of a breach of the Code of Conduct by a participant made against another participant, which arises from an incident during a match or on the field of play should, if possible be reported by a team's captain to the umpire(s). In any event, any participant may report such an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct against another participant
- ii. In relation to any alleged breach of the Code of Conducts subject to a report by a non-umpire participant, the following steps must be taken:
 - a. Within 72 hours of the end of the match, the reporting participant must submit a written report of the alleged Breach, preferably by email, using the NCDG discipline form to the Secretary of the relevant League, or his nominated deputy.

- b. If the written report is available prior to the leaving the ground, the reporting participant should provide it to the player and his captain, who may submit comment in the form. If the written report is not available prior to leaving the ground, the offending player shall be given a reasonable opportunity to make a response to the report.
- iii. The Chair or Deputy Chair of the NCDG may accept reports for Level 3 and 4 offences outside of the 72-hour window if they deem the circumstances as to why the report was not submitted in time to be exceptional.
- 7.5 Any allegation of a breach of the Code of Conduct by a participant made against another participant which does not arise from an incident during a match or on the field of play should be notified to the League Secretary promptly but no later than 7 days after the incident giving rise to the allegation. Subject to any direction from the Discipline Chair, a written report should be produced, which should allow the Discipline Chair to understand:
 - i. the background to the alleged incident
 - ii. why a breach of the Code of Conduct is alleged
 - the Level of breach alleged. Where possible, notifications and reports should be submitted to the League Secretary by a Club Secretary or League Representative.
- 7.6 The Discipline Chair shall have an overriding discretion to accept or decline reports submitted under Rule 7.4(ii). Except for exceptional circumstances, such reports shall not be accepted relating to any alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct which have been, or could have been, reported by an umpire pursuant to Rule 7.3(ii) (the Discipline Chair may contact an umpire for their observations/views on allegations/the content of any report) or where there has been undue delay in making a notification or report.
- 7.7 Any complaints submitted under Rule 7.4(ii) must be made in good faith. The submission of a report which is trivial, vexatious, made for tactical reasons or otherwise improper may itself be treated as a breach of the Code of Conduct under Rule 2.9.

8 Procedure

8.1 As soon as reasonably practicable (and no later than 24 hours) following receipt of a report an alleged breach, the Discipline Chair of the relevant League shall inform the secretary of the concerned club (or other participant as appropriate in the circumstances) and provide a written copy of the report.

- 8.2 Any Level 1 or Level 2 breach of the Code of Conduct should in the first instance be dealt with by the participant's club (in accordance with the guideline penalties detailed at paragraph 6), and the Secretary of the club shall notify the Discipline Chair within 48 hours of any action taken by the club or which it proposes to take.
- 8.3 Within 48 hours of receipt of notification from the Secretary of the club as to its action or proposed action, the Discipline Chair shall consider the matter and resolve:
 - i. Where a participant admits the matter(s):
 - To take no further action except to record the complaint and notify the club of their decision
 - To endorse any action taken by the club and confirm that no further action is required
 - c. Where any action taken by the club is deemed insufficient, to impose a penalty on the player. In such a case the player will have the Right of Appeal against the penalty under Rule 18
 - d. To refer the matter for a full Disciplinary Hearing
 - ii. Where a participant denies the matter(s) or where it is not known whether they admit or deny the matter(s):
 - To take no further action except to record the complaint and notify the club of their decision, or
 - b. To refer the matter for a full Disciplinary Hearing.
- 8.4 Level 3 or 4 complaints will automatically be subject to a full Disciplinary Hearing. As soon as possible, or at least within 24 hours of receipt of the written complaint for a Level 3 or 4, the League Secretary, or their nominated deputy, from the relevant League to which the report was submitted, shall forward this report to the Chair of the NDCG.
- 8.5 Upon receiving a Level 3 or 4 complaint, the Chair or Deputy Chair of the NCDG may return that report to the Secretary of the relevant league, if they determine without a hearing that the report does not constitute a Level 3 or 4 offence.
- 8.6 The County Safeguarding Officer will immediately be informed by the relevant League Secretary of any case which:
 - i. Involves a player under the age of 18 years old
 - Threatens the welfare of any player, spectator or official regardless of age.
 In such circumstances, the incident may be regarded as:
 - a. A welfare and child protection case

- b. An outright disciplinary case. If the incident is being investigated by another organisation (e.g., the Police, ECB Safeguarding Department) the Discipline Panel will await the outcome of that investigation.
- 8.7 The Chair or Vice-Chair of the NCDG or Discipline Chair of the relevant League reserves the right to immediately suspend a player without a hearing, if they deem the offence serious enough that not taking any action could put the welfare of players, supporters, or officials at risk.
- 8.8 In the case of a player registered by a First-Class County being the subject of a Level 3 or 4 complaint, the National Leagues & Competitions Manager is to be advised as soon as possible by telephone or email by the Chair of the NDCP, or their nominated deputy.

9 Disciplinary Hearings

- 9.1 All hearings shall follow the ECB Conduct of Hearings Guidelines.
- 9.2 The Chair of the NCDG or Discipline Chair of the relevant League will empanel a hearing within 14 days of receiving the written report, giving the player via their club Secretary at least seven days' notice in writing of the hearing. The notice shall specify the alleged breach(es) of the Code of Conduct.
- 9.3 Where a charge against a player is referred to a Disciplinary Hearing, their captain and club may be charged separately under their responsibilities as set out in the Code of Conduct.
- 9.4 Any delay to a hearing may only be granted at the discretion of the Chair of the NCDG or Discipline Chair of the relevant League, except in the case of Rule 8.5(iv).
- 9.5 In the event of a Disciplinary Hearing in relation to a Level 1 or 2 offence, the relevant League will empanel a three-person panel drawn from a list approved by the League's Management Committee drawn from a list approved by the League's Management Committee. None of the Disciplinary Panel should relate to the participant or any relevant opponent at the time of the alleged breach, or any participant who might directly benefit from any disciplinary action.
- 9.6 In the event of a Disciplinary Hearing in relation to a Level 3 or 4 offence, the Chair of the NCDG will empanel a three-person panel from a pool of nominated panellists provided by the Leagues. The panel must be absent of any representative connected to the League to which the report was submitted. Also, none of the panel should be connected to the player, the club, or their opponents at the time of the alleged breach, or a club which might directly benefit from any disciplinary action. The League to which the report was submitted is welcome to send a silent observer or minute taker for information purposes, to report back accurately to their own management committee. They must not in any way influence the opinions or verdict of the panel.

- 9.7 There is an expectation that the umpire or other person who submitted the complaint makes themselves available to be a witness at the hearing.
- 9.8 The Chair or Deputy Chair of the NCDG may require witnesses to appear at the hearing to validate or question the content of a report.
- 9.9 The accused player or club shall be entitled:
 - . To submit written statements ahead of the hearing
 - ii. To attend the hearing
 - iii. To state their case (in the case of a club, by its secretary or other official)
 - iv. To be supported by a colleague and to call witnesses.
 - To legal representation, the cost of which will be covered by the player or club.
- 9.10 If the player or club is to have representation present at the hearing then the details of that representation must be given to the Chair of the Discipline Panel not less than 48 hours before the date of the hearing.
- 9.11 A participant involved in disciplinary proceedings will be solely responsible for meeting costs or expenses as it or they may incur, including the cost of any legal or other representation. If they are found not guilty then expenses outside of legal representation shall be reimbursed upon the receipt of an invoice by the NCDG.
- 9.12 The standard of proof shall be on the balance of probabilities.
- 9.13 Non-attendance at a Disciplinary Hearing by the participant or club, having been given reasonable notice in accordance with Rule 9.1 will not postpone or cancel the hearing. The hearing will be conducted in the absence of the player or club. Non-attendance at the hearing, without good and valid reason, by the participant or club will automatically result in forfeit of their right to an Appeal Hearing and the panel's decision will be final and binding.
- 9.14 A written statement will be provided within a reasonable period to all parties explaining the decision taken by the panel and outlining the rights of appeal.

10 Penalties

10.1 If at a Disciplinary Hearing a breach of the Code of Conduct is proved, the Disciplinary Panel shall have the power to impose one or more of the following penalties, together with such order as to costs as it deems appropriate:

In the case of a player:

- To require the player to submit appropriate letter(s) of apology within a specified time
- ii. To record a reprimand and to give a warning as to future conduct

- To impose a fine, not to exceed £100.00. A player can choose to waive their fine and accept an additional week's suspension to the initial penalty.
- iv. To ban the player for a stated period
- v. To deduct League points from the player's team
- vi. To expel the player from our Leagues

In the case of a club:

- To require the club to submit appropriate letter(s) of apology within a specified time
- ii. To record a reprimand and to give a warning as to future conduct
- iii. To impose a fine, not to exceed £250.00
- iv. To deduct League points from the club's team
- v. To expel the club from any competitions of our Leagues
- vi. To relegate to any lower division of our Leagues

In the case of any other participant:

- To require the participant to submit appropriate letter(s) of apology within a specified time
- ii. To record a reprimand and to give a warning as to future conduct
- iii. To impose a fine, not to exceed £100.00
- iv. To ban the participant for a stated period
- v. To deduct League points from the participants team
- vi. To expel the participant from our Leagues
- 10.2 Panels may take the following factors into account when determining the penalties to be imposed:
 - i. If the accused participant has pleaded guilty
 - ii. The participant's previous disciplinary record
 - The position of the participant (for example, if a player is a captain or professional)
 - The conduct of the participant after them/it being warned and told that they will be reported
 - v. In any case involving a player, the regularity with which the player plays cricket and at what level(s) of cricket they play (for example, a fixed period ban of two weeks is likely to have a more serious impact upon an ECB registered cricketer who plays regularly when compared to a purely recreational player who plays infrequently)

- vi. Whether conduct occurred on or off the field of play
- Any other mitigating or aggravating factors relevant to the circumstances of the breach.
- 10.3 The panel shall have the power to suspend the operation of any part, or all, of the penalty it imposes for such period and subject to such terms and conditions it deems appropriate.
- 10.4 Where applicable, penalties may be carried over to apply in the following season(s).
- 10.5 Decisions of the panel (a finding that a complaint is proved or not proved or a decision on penalty) shall be by majority vote. Where necessary the panel Chair shall have the casting vote.
- 10.6 In accordance with the Cricket Discipline Commission (CDC) Regulations, it is envisaged that in any case where a ban is lawfully imposed upon an ECB registered cricketer by a panel such a ban shall be recognised by the CDC. ECB registered cricketers have a right of appeal to an Appeal Panel of the CDC and, in the event of a ban being imposed upon an ECB registered cricketer the panel Chair shall, as soon as practicable, report the matter in writing to:
 - i. the ECB Head of Cricket Operations (First Class)
 - ii. the ECB Head of Non-First-Class Cricket

11 Breaches of Discipline

- 11.1 The umpires shall act upon any unacceptable conduct. Four Levels of offence and the corresponding actions by the umpires are identified as Level 1, Level 2, Level 3, and Level 4 offences in Law 42.2 to 42.5.
- 11.2 If either umpire considers that the conduct of a player, at any time during the match, is unacceptable, the umpire concerned shall call and signal Dead ball. This call may be delayed until the umpire is satisfied that it will not disadvantage the non-offending side.
- 11.3 The umpire concerned shall report the matter to the other umpire and together they shall decide whether misconduct has occurred. If so, they shall determine into which of the levels of conduct falls, as set out in Level 1 to Level 4 offences below, and then apply the related sanctions.
- 11.4 For each Level 1 to 4, if the offence is by a batter, the umpires shall summon the offending player's captain to the field. Solely for the purpose of this Law, the batter at the wicket may not deputise for their captain.

12 Level 1 Offences & Action by Umpires

- 12.1 Any of the following actions by a player shall constitute a Level 1 offence:
 - Wilfully mistreating any part of the cricket ground, equipment or implements used in the match
 - ii. Showing dissent at an umpire's decision by word or action
 - Using language that, in the circumstances, is obscene, offensive, or insulting
 - iv. Making an obscene gesture
 - v. Appealing excessively
 - vi. Advancing towards an umpire in an aggressive manner when appealing
 - vii. Any other misconduct, the nature of which is, in the opinion of the umpires, equivalent to a Level 1 offence
- 12.2 If such an offence is committed, the following shall be implemented as appropriate, according to whether it is the first offence at any Level:
 - i. The umpire shall call Time, if necessary
 - iii Together the umpires shall summon and inform the offending player's captain that an offence at this Level has occurred.
 - iii. If the Level 1 offence is the first offence, at any Level, by that team, the umpire shall:
 - Issue a first and final warning which shall apply to all members of the team for the remainder of the match
 - Warn the offending player's captain that any further Level 1 offence
 by any member of their team shall result in the award of 5 Penalty
 runs to the opposing team
 - c. If the Level 1 offence follows an offence, at any Level, by that team, the umpire shall award 5 Penalty runs to the opposing team
 - d. As soon as practicable the umpire shall call Play
 - e. The umpires together shall report the occurrence as soon as possible after the match to the Executive of the offending player's team and to any Governing Body responsible for the match, who shall take such further action as is considered appropriate against the captain, any other individuals concerned and, if appropriate, the team.
- 12.3 The following penalties should be expected for offences at LEVEL 1:
 - A possible ban from all ECB cricket for up to 6 weeks and possible fines and/or point deductions.

Any sanction can be immediate, suspended, or both. The offender may be given a warning and/or asked to write a formal letter of apology.

13 Level 2 Offences & Action by Umpires

- 13.1 Any of the following actions by a player shall constitute a Level 2 offence:
 - i. Showing serious dissent at an umpire's decision by word or action
 - ii. Making inappropriate or deliberate physical contact with another player
 - iii. Throwing the ball at a player, umpire, or another person in an inappropriate and dangerous manner
 - Using language or gesture to another player, umpire, team official or spectator that, in the circumstances, is obscene or of a seriously insulting nature
 - v. or any other misconduct, the nature of which is, in the opinion of the umpires, equivalent to a Level 2 offence
- 13.2 If such an offence is committed, the following shall be implemented:
 - i. The umpire shall call Time, if necessary
 - Together the umpires shall summon and inform the offending player's captain that an offence at this Level has occurred.
 - iii. The umpire shall award 5 Penalty runs to the opposing team
 - iv. The umpire shall warn the offending player's captain that any future Level 1 offence by any member of their/her team shall result in the award of 5 Penalty runs to the opposing team
 - v. As soon as practicable the umpire shall call Play
 - vi. The umpires together shall report the occurrence as soon as possible after the match to the Executive of the offending player's team and to any Governing Body responsible for the match, who shall take such further action as is considered appropriate against the captain, any other individuals concerned and, if appropriate the team.
- 13.3 The following penalties should be expected for offences at LEVEL 2:
 - A possible ban from all ECB cricket from 2-8 weeks and possible fines and/or points deductions.

Any sanction can be immediate, suspended, or both.

14 Level 3 Offences & Action by Umpires

- 14.1 Either of the following actions by a player shall constitute a Level 3 offence:
 - i. Intimidating an umpire by language or gesture
 - Threatening to assault a player or any other person except an umpire (see Level 4 offences)

- 14.2 If such an offence is committed the following shall be implemented:
 - i. The umpire shall call Time, if necessary
 - Together the umpires shall summon and inform the offending player's captain that an offence at this Level has occurred
 - iii. The umpire shall direct the captain to remove the offending player immediately from the field of play, for a period in accordance with the following:
 - In a match where the number of overs in an innings is not limited, the player shall be suspended from the field of play for 10 overs.
 - b. In a match where the number of overs in an innings is not limited, the player shall be suspended for one fifth of the number of overs allocated to the current innings at its commencement. If, in calculating the length of the suspension, a part-over results, it shall be considered as a whole over. Furthermore, any balls remaining in the over in progress at the time of suspension shall not count towards the overs for which the player is suspended.
 - c. If the offending player is a fielder, no substitute shall be allowed for him/her. The offending player may return to the field of play after serving the period of suspension and may bowl immediately.
 - d. If a bowler is suspended mid-over, then that over must be completed by a different bowler, who shall not have bowled the previous over nor shall he/she bowl the next over.
 - e. If the offending player is a not out batter, they shall be replaced by another member of their team. The offending player may return to bat after having served the suspension only at the fall of a wicket. If no batter is available to bat during a batter's suspension, the innings is completed. If the offending player does not continue their innings for whatever reason, they are to be recorded as Retired not out.
 - f. If the offending player is a dismissed member of the batting side, the period of suspension will not commence until the start of the next innings. Furthermore, in these circumstances, the offending player may not act as a runner during the innings when he/she was suspended.
 - g. Warn the offending player's captain that any further Level 1 offence shall result in the award of 5 Penalty runs to the opposing team.
 - h. Any overs remaining to be served from a suspension shall be carried forward to the next and subsequent innings of the match. A part over at the end of the innings shall not count towards the overs for which the player is suspended.

- 14.3 As soon as practicable, the umpire shall:
 - i. Award 5 Penalty runs to the opposing team
 - ii. Signal the Level 3 penalty to the scorers
 - iii. Call Play
 - iv. The umpires together shall report the occurrence as soon as possible after the match to the Executive of the offending player's team and to any Governing Body responsible for the match, who shall take such further action as is considered appropriate against the captain, any other individuals concerned and, if appropriate, the team.
- 14.4 The following penalties should be expected for offences at LEVEL 3:
 - A possible ban from all ECB cricket from 4-10 weeks and possible fines and/or points deductions.

Any sanction must be immediate with suspended sanctions only allowed as additions.

15 Level 4 Offences & Action by Umpires

- 15.1 Any of the following actions by a player shall constitute a Level 4 offence:
 - i. Threatening to assault an umpire
 - ii. Making inappropriate and deliberate physical contact with an umpire
 - iii. Physically assaulting a player or any other person
 - iv. Committing any other act of violence
- 15.2 If such an offence is committed, the following shall be implemented:
 - i. The umpire shall call Time, if necessary
 - Together the umpires shall summon and inform the offending player's captain that an offence at this Level has occurred
 - iii. The umpires shall direct the captain to remove the offending player immediately from the field of play for the remainder of the match and shall apply the following:
 - a. If the offending player is a fielder, no substitute shall be allowed for him/her. He/she is to be recorded as Retired out at the commencement of any subsequent innings in which their team is the batting side.
 - b. If a bowler is suspended mid-over, then that over must be completed by a different bowler, who shall not have bowled the previous over nor shall be permitted to bowl the next over.

- c. If the offending player is a batter, they are to be recorded as Retired out in the current innings, unless they have been dismissed under any of the Laws 32-39, and at the commencement of any subsequent innings in which their team is the batting side. If no further batter is available to bat, the innings is completed.
- d. Warn the offending player's captain that any future Level 1 offence shall result in the award of 5 Penalty runs to the opposing team.

15.3 As soon as practicable, the umpire shall:

- i. Award 5 Penalty runs to the opposing team
- ii. Signal the Level 4 penalty to the scorers
- iii. Call Plav
- iv. The umpires together shall report the occurrence as soon as possible after the match to the Executive of the offending player's team and to any Governing Body responsible for the match, who shall take such further action as is considered appropriate against the captain, any other individuals concerned and, if appropriate, the team
- 15.4 The following penalties should be expected for offences at LEVEL 4:
 - A minimum ban from all ECB cricket of 10 weeks and possible fines and/or points deductions.

Any sanction must be immediate with suspended sanctions only allowed as additions.

16 Captains refusing to remove a player from the Field

- 16.1 If a captain refuses to carry out an instruction under Level 3 offences or Level 4 offences, the umpires shall invoke Law 16.3 (Umpires awarding a match).
- 16.2 If both captains refuse to carry out instructions under Level 3 offences or Level 4 offences in respect of the same incident, the umpires shall instruct the players to leave the field. The match is not concluded as in Law 12.9 (Conclusion of match) and there shall be no result under Law 16 (The result).

17 Additional points relating to Level 3 and Level 4 Offences

- 17.1 If a player, whilst acting as wicketkeeper, commits a Level 3 or Level 4 offence, Law 24.1.2 shall not apply, meaning that only a nominated player may act as wicketkeeper, even if another fielder becomes injured or ill and is replaced by a substitute
- 17.2 A nominated player who has a substitute or runner will also suffer the penalty for any Level 3 or Level 4 offence committed by the substitute or runner and will be reported under Level 3 offence 4 or Level 4 offence 2e.

- 17.3 The conduct listed in Level 1 to 4 above cannot be exhaustive. Where any alleged breach falls outside the conduct above, whether on or off the field, the NCDG Chair or Discipline Chair of the relevant League shall determine the appropriate Level with reference to the following factors:
 - the level of harm caused (or potentially caused) to the interests or reputation of our Leagues or the game of cricket in general.
 - ii. whether any alleged language used, or gesture made may offend, insult, humiliate, intimidate, threaten, disparage, or vilify another person based on that person's (or that person's perceived) age, race, religion, sexual orientation, colour, descent or national or ethnic origin.
 - iii. whether it is alleged that any conduct was intended to cause physical harm to another person, or such harm was reasonably foreseeable.
 - iv. whether it is alleged that any conduct was intended to cause distress to another person, or such distress was reasonably foreseeable.
 - whether it is alleged that any behaviour caused harm to a child, or such harm was reasonably foreseeable.
 - vi. the level of harm/distress the alleged conduct caused (or may have caused) to another person.
 - vii. whether it is alleged that any conduct was criminal or otherwise unlawful.
 - viii. any other factor relevant to the circumstances of the alleged conduct.
- 17.4 In determining the appropriate level, it is again to be remembered that the core aim of the Disciplinary Regulations is to maintain the highest standards of behaviour and conduct in the game of cricket. The Level determined for an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct should be proportionate to achieve that core aim.

18 Appeals

18.1 Where a breach of the Code of Conduct has been proved at a Disciplinary Hearing, or a breach has been dealt with in accordance with Rule 8.3(i)(c) above, a participant shall have the right of appeal. For clarity, a participant who has denied the breach, but the breach has been proven, may appeal against the finding of guilt and/or the penalty imposed. A participant who has admitted the breach may appeal against the penalty only. This right should only be exercised in good faith upon reasonable grounds. Where more than one participant (e.g., a player and their club) appeals in relation to the same incident, they must do so separately.

- 18.2 A notice of an appeal to a Level 1 or 2 offence, setting out the grounds for appeal, must be given in writing to the League Secretary, or their nominated deputy, of the relevant League within seven days of the decision of the League's Discipline Chair. As soon as possible, or at least within 48 hours of receipt of the notice of appeal, the Secretary of the relevant League to which the report was submitted, shall forward this report to the NCDG Chair. The amount of the deposit shall be £150.00 for each club and £75.00 for each other participant exercising their right of appeal.
- 18.3 A notice of an appeal to a Level 3 or 4 offence, setting out the grounds for appeal, must be given in writing to the Chair of the NCDG within seven days of the decision of the NCDG being communicated in writing, together with a deposit of £75.00 if the appeal is by a player or £150.00 if the appeal is by a club.
- 18.4 If a notice of appeal is given, the penalty shall not take effect pending the hearing of the Appeal, which shall take place as soon as is practicable and in any event within 14 days of receipt of notice of the appeal. Non-attendance at the original hearing, unless for good and valid reason verified by the Chair of the Countywide Discipline Panel, will forfeit the club or players' right of appeal.
- 18.5 The Appeal shall be by way of a new hearing before a different panel. The Appeals Panel shall be appointed by the NCDG Chair, or Vice-Chair, whomever did not chair the first hearing, and shall consist of two other persons drawn from a list approved by the NCDG Chair. None of the Panel should be connected to the individual or the club or their opponents, or a club that might directly benefit from any disciplinary action or have been a member of the original Disciplinary Panel. The participant shall have the same rights of attendance and representation, and to call witnesses as they had before the Disciplinary Panel.
- 18.6 If the club or players are to have representation present at the hearing then the details of that representation must be given to the Appeals Chair less than seven days before the date of the hearing.
- 18.7 Non-attendance at a hearing of the Appeals Panel by the club or person that submitted the appeal without good and valid reason for such non-attendance will automatically result in forfeiture of their right of appeal.
- 18.8 The Appeals Panel may confirm, vary, or reverse the decision of the Disciplinary Panel and it shall have the power to increase the sanction and award costs of the Appeal hearing and forfeit the whole or part of the deposit, minus any expenses incurred. Decisions of the Appeal Panel shall be by majority vote; where necessary, the Chair shall have a casting vote.
- 18.9 The decision of the Appeals Panel or, if no appeal, of the Disciplinary Panel, shall be final and binding.
- 18.10 A written statement will be provided within a reasonable period to all parties explaining the decision taken by the panel and confirming the end of proceedings.

19 Non-Payment of Fines

- 19.1 Any fine levied must be paid to the Treasurer of the League within 28 days of the club being notified of such fine.
- 19.2 Any fines still outstanding at the end of that 28-day period shall be increased by 100% of the original fine. At the end of that period the Secretary or Chair of the offending club shall be notified to the effect that the fine is outstanding and given a reminder that if after a further period of 14 days from that reminder, the fine is still outstanding, a deduction of five points shall be made in regard to the team from which the fine arose (or, if the fine does not arise from a particular team, the club's first team).

20 Mutual Recognition of Penalties

- 20.1 Our Leagues and clubs shall mutually recognise and give full effect to any penalty imposed by the Disciplinary and Appeals Panels of the League (as defined at Rule 1.1).
- 20.2 Our Leagues and clubs shall recognise and give effect to penalties imposed pursuant to any disciplinary or relevant regulations of all competitions under the auspices of Nottinghamshire County Cricket Club Recreational Cricket as defined and listed in the ECB's Articles of Association from time-to-time, and any other competitions as directed by the ECB from time-to-time (the recognised competitions).
- 20.3 A participant may not play in matches under the auspices of our Leagues whilst serving a suspension given by any other of our Leagues or a Recognised Competition.
- 20.4 For the avoidance of doubt, in the event any other of the Leagues or a Recognised Competition suspends a player for a stated period, that player may not play in any matches under the auspices of our Leagues until that suspension has been served.
- 20.5 In order to give effect of the mutual recognition of penalties between our Leagues and Recognised Competitions, a League may report and receive information regarding penalties imposed upon participants pursuant to the Disciplinary Regulations to and from the ECB and Recognised Competitions. Information will be shared about the penalties imposed on participants across all Leagues on an official NCDG database.

21 Data Protection Consent

Each participant shall be deemed to have agreed, for the purposes of the General Data Protection Regulation 2018 and otherwise, that their personal data may be processed and disclosed in accordance with, and for the purposes of the implementation of, the Disciplinary Regulations.

22 Confidentiality

- 22.1 All disciplinary proceedings which take place under the Disciplinary Regulations shall be confidential and shall take place in private.
- 22.2 Our Leagues and the ECB shall have the right to publish any written decision of a Disciplinary Panel or Appeal Panel, including (but not necessarily limited to) publication on their websites, and participants shall be deemed to have consented to such publication.

23 Social Media

For the avoidance of doubt, any postings online and/or on social media (Twitter, Facebook, or similar/equivalent platforms), shall also be determined in accordance with the factors above. In relation to such cases, it should be noted:

- Participants are to be considered responsible for any posting(s) on their social media account(s) which are caught by the factors detailed above (the fact that a posting may have been made by someone else in the participants name will not necessarily prevent disciplinary action being taken)
- Disciplinary action may result from repeating comments made on social media by others (e.g., 'retweeting') which are caught by the factors detailed above
- iii. The deleting of any inappropriate content, whilst advisable, does not in itself prevent disciplinary action being taken.

24 Rule Changes

The NCDG discipline regulations can only be amended or added to by a majority vote of the participating member Leagues in the NCDG, followed by, where necessary, a majority vote at a League AGM or EGM. Where there is a tied vote between member Leagues, in exceptional circumstances the Chair of the NCCC Clubs and Leagues sub-committee may cast a deciding vote.

25 Membership

A league may, by a majority vote of teams, leave the NCDG. A League wishing to join the NCDG must adopt the regulations in full at a League AGM or EGM with a majority vote of teams, where necessary.

Rules & Playing Conditions – League Competition

Rules & Playing Conditions as found in Sections A-E apply with the exceptions/additions as varied hereunder.

1 Title

The title of the Competition shall be The Bassetlaw & District Cricket League.

2 Entry

- 2.1 The competition is open to all member clubs.
- 2.2 Member clubs are required to submit their application to the League Secretary, prior to the end of November of each year, or as otherwise requested, and to indicate how many teams they wish to enter.

3 Constitution

- 3.1 The constitution of the Divisions shall be determined by the League Management Committee, based on the number of teams participating, and the final League Tables from the previous full and complete season.
- 3.2 The teams in membership shall be organised into an appropriate number of Divisions, with the top Division named the 'Championship'.
- 3.3 No club shall have more than one team in any Division, except the lowest.
- 3.4 Two teams from the same club shall not exchange Division.
- 3.5 Any team withdrawing from the Competition will have their results expunged.

4 Qualification & Registration of Players

Clubs are encouraged to utilise Rule 4, Section D to fulfil fixtures where required.

4.1 On a scheduled league matchday where all higher teams are representing a club, then clubs may select, promote, or demote players as the club see fit; however, when one or both of a club's top two teams are without a scheduled league match, e.g., bye or cancellation, the club must not select higher division players for its lower teams

The definition of a higher division player shall be a player who has played 5 of the last 8 games in a higher division that have commenced for their registered club in the current or previous season.

Any such breach will result in the player(s) deemed as ineligible.

4.2 Additionally, in a fixture played after 31 July, on a Bank Holiday Monday, on a Sunday or any other date that a higher placed team has no fixture, or a fixture cancelled, a player who has played most of their matches at a higher level than the match due to be played shall not be eligible. A player who has not played in a match within the BDCL during the current season shall also not be eligible to play.

Any such breach may result in a sanction as determined by the League Management Committee Sub Committee.

This shall not apply to fixtures up until the first Saturday in June to allow players to 'find their level'.

5 Umpires & Scorers

- 5.1 Each team must supply a scorer.
 - In all Championship and Division 1 matches, failure to comply with this rule shall result in a 1-point deduction.
- 5.2 Each appointed Umpire shall, not later than the end of the interval, be paid match expenses of £45.00.
 - In the event of only one registered League Umpire being appointed, or turning up for a match, and that Umpire takes the bowling end throughout the match, they shall be paid £55.00.
 - Should there be no play in the game, following the arrival of both teams and the Umpire(s) at the ground, each Umpire shall be paid match expenses of £15.00.
 - The cost of the Umpire(s) is to be shared by both clubs.
- 5.3 Umpires in all Championship and Division 1 matches shall be confidentially assessed by Captains on their performance in every match, by completing the 'Umpires Assessment Form' available from the League Website.
 - All reports submitted must be received within 72 hours (Midnight Tuesday for a Saturday match).
 - A report is not required if a match is cancelled.
 - Non-compliance with this rule will result in a 1-point deduction.
- 5.4 Umpires in all other Divisions may be confidentially assessed by Captains of all teams on their performance.

6 No-Ball

Law 41.6 (Bowling of dangerous and unfair short-pitched deliveries) shall apply with the following additions:

- 6.1 Regardless of how wide of the striker a delivery is, there shall be no more than one delivery per over that after pitching pass or would have passed clearly over shoulder height of the striker standing upright at the popping crease.
- 6.2 The umpire shall make it clear to the bowler (and any bowler called upon to complete an over) and the batters at the wicket when a delivery within the limit in Rule 6.1 has been bowled. It is unfair if the limit is exceeded, and the umpire shall call and signal No ball on each such occasion and consider it as part of the warning sequence in Laws 41.6.3 and 41.6.4.
- 6.3 A different signal shall be used to signify a fast short pitched "No Ball". The Umpire shall call and signal "No Ball" then raise the other arm across the chest. If the bowler exceeds their limit of short-pitched deliveries in an over not only must the Umpire call "No Ball" but he must invoke the procedures of Law 41.6.3 regarding cautioning the bowler. If a bowler is "No Balled" a second time in the innings for the same offence the Umpire is to invoke Law 41.6.4 and the bowler shall be removed forthwith and shall not be allowed to bowl again in that innings.

Note: For the avoidance of doubt the warnings detailed in Laws 41.6.1, 41.6.2 and those above in Rule 6.1 and Rule 6.2 are cumulative.

6.4 Law 41.7 (Bowling of dangerous and unfair non-pitching deliveries) shall apply.

7 Free Hit after a No Ball

Championship only

7.1 The delivery following a no ball shall be a free hit for whichever batter is facing it.

Note: this applies to all modes of No ball except for a short-pitched delivery that passes or would have passed clearly over head height of the striker standing upright at the popping crease.

- 7.2 If the delivery for a free hit is not a legitimate delivery (any kind of no ball or wide), then the next delivery shall become a free hit for whichever batter is facing it.
- 7.3 For any free hit, the striker can be dismissed only under the circumstances that apply for a no ball, even if the delivery for the free hit is called wide ball.
- 7.4 Field changes are not permitted for free hit deliveries unless there is a change of striker, or the No Ball was the result of a field restriction breach in which case the field may be changed to the extent of correcting the breach. However, in all circumstances, any fielder within 15 yards of the striker may retreat to a position on the same line no more than 15 yards from the striker.

7.5 The umpires shall signal free hit by (after the normal no ball signal) extending one arm straight upwards and moving it in a circular motion.

8 Law 22 - Wide Ball - Judging a Wide

Championship and Division 1 only

Any ball, not being a No Ball, that passes the striker's leg stump, irrespective of where that ball pitched, will be called, and signalled a wide. It will not be a wide if the ball contacts the striker, their person or equipment, or the bat in hand before it passes the line of the stumps, or the ball passes between the striker and the leg stump.

9 Restrictions of the Placement of Fielders

All Divisions

9.1 In all matches, at the instant of delivery, there may not be more than 5 fielders on the leg side.

Championship and Division 1 only

9.2 A fielding circle shall be marked on the field of play by white plastic or rubber disks.

The fielding circle shall consist of two semi-circles which shall have as their centre the middle stump at either end of the pitch. The ends of which shall be joined by a straight parallel line.

The radius of each semi-circle shall be 30 yards (27.4 metres).

Division 1 only

9.3 At the instant of delivery, no more than five fielders shall be permitted outside the fielding restriction area for the entirety of the innings.

In the event of an infringement of the above fielding restrictions, the Umpire at the striker's end shall call and signal 'No Ball'.

Championship only

- 9.4 At the instant of delivery:
 - Powerplay 1 no more than two fielders shall be permitted outside the fielding restriction area. In an innings of 50 overs, these are overs 1 to 10 inclusive.
 - Powerplay 2 no more than four fielders shall be permitted outside the fielding restriction area. In an innings of 50 overs, these are overs 11 to 40 inclusive.
 - iii. Powerplay 3 no more than five fielders shall be permitted outside the fielding restriction area. In an innings of 50 overs, these are overs 41 to 50 inclusive.

In the event of an infringement of the above fielding restrictions, the Umpire at the striker's end shall call and signal 'No Ball'.

Division 2 and below

9.5 The use of fielding circles is not permitted.

10 Matches

- 10.1 All matches shall be played on the appointed date, as arranged, and published by the League Management Committee.
- 10.2 Should a club need to concede a match, it must concede the match involving the lowest team.
- 10.3 In all Matches, the following points shall be awarded:

Win	20 points
Tie	15 points
Abandoned	10 points
Cancelled	6 points
Loss	0 points

10.4 In an uninterrupted match, where both sides have had the opportunity of batting for the same number of overs, the following bonus points will be awarded to the losing team:

Batting

Division	1	2	3	4	5
Championship	110	135	160	185	210
Division 1 and below	70	90	110	130	150

Bowling

Division	1	2	3	4	5
All Divisions	2	4	6	8	All out

11 Divisional Placings

The divisional placings shall be determined by the following criteria, taken in order:

- i. The total number of points.
- ii. The total number of wins over all completed matches.
- iii. The average net run rate over all completed matches.
- iv. The toss of a coin.

12 Promotion & Relegation

- 12.1 At the end of the season the top two teams in all Divisions below the Championship shall be promoted.
 - The bottom team in each Division will be relegated.
- 12.2 In order to re-populate the Divisions, additional teams may be promoted or relegated.
- 12.3 The winner of the Championship may be invited to join NPL2.

Promotion to the NPL will be dependent on the criteria laid out by the NPL.

Promotion from Division 1 to the Championship is dependent on the criteria laid out in Rule 2, Section B. Should the criteria not be met, the number of teams relegated from the Championship shall be reduced.

13 Hours of Play

Championship only

13.1 All matches will commence at 12.00pm, and 11.30pm in September.

Division 1 and below

- 13.2 All matches will commence at 1.00pm.
- 13.3 Matches may commence at 12.00pm with the agreement of both clubs. The agreement must be in place and the Match Administrator and Umpires Appointment Secretary notified before 23:45pm on the Wednesday prior to the match

All Divisions

- 13.2 There shall be an interval of 10 minutes between the innings plus 20 minutes for tea.
- 13.3 The Umpires will have sole authority as to when intervals shall be taken.

14 Duckworth/Lewis & Average Run Rate

- 14.1 All games scored electronically, by any side, using the ECBs Play-Cricket Scorer must use the Duckworth/Lewis method.
- 14.2 For games not scored electronically, and prior to the toss, the two Captains must decide whether the Duckworth/Lewis method or Average Run Rate is to be used
 - If the two Captains do not agree, the Duckworth/Lewis method must be used.
- 14.3 The decision must be relayed to the officials and recorded on the Match Team

15 Length of Innings

15.1 Each team in the Championship shall bat for 50 overs unless all out earlier.

Each team in Division 1 and below shall bat for 40 overs unless all out earlier.

If the team batting first is dismissed in less than their allocated overs, the team batting second shall be entitled to bat for the full allocation.

A team shall not be permitted to declare its innings closed.

15.2 Teams in the Championship are expected to be in position to bowl the first ball of the last of their 50 overs within 3 hours 15 minutes playing time.

Teams in Division 1 and below are expected to be in position to bowl the first ball of the last of their 40 overs within 2 hours 40 minutes playing time (including time taken for drinks).

It is the responsibility of the captain to ensure that their team bowl their allocated overs within the playing time.

- 15.3 With the agreement of both captains bearing in mind the prevailing ground, weather, and light conditions it is considered most unlikely that the full quota of overs will be bowled in any match, it is recommended that a pre-emptive decision is made to reduce overs in both innings equally. The level of the deduction will be decided by the two Captains.
- 15.4 Umpires shall make time allowances for unavoidable stoppages caused by injury or other extenuating circumstances.

In such circumstances the match schedule will be extended, but by no more than 30 minutes.

Stoppages for drinks, and any other non-injury or extenuating circumstance have been included in the time allowance and need not be recorded.

15.5 If in the opinion of the Umpire(s), the team fielding fails to bowl the required number of overs by the scheduled time for the cessation of their innings, play shall continue until the full quota of overs have been completed.

Championship only

15.6 One fewer fielder shall be permitted outside the fielding restriction area (see Rule 9.4) than would normally be the case in the over(s) in progress at that time.

All penalties in this regard will be imposed immediately the ball first becomes dead after the scheduled or re-scheduled cessation time for the innings.

Division 1 and below

15.7 The umpires shall record and report all overs started by the fielding side after the time allowed, and a team shall receive a 1-point deduction for each late over.

All Divisions

- 15.8 In an interrupted match where one innings is reduced to 20 overs or less, Rule 15.6 (Championship), or Rule 15.7 (Division 1 and below), will not apply.
- 15.9 In the event of no League Umpires, Rule 15.6 (Championship), or Rule 15.7 (Division 1 and below), will not apply.

16 Overs per Bowler

16.1 No bowler shall bowl more than 20% of the scheduled number of overs for the innings.

In the Championship, each bowler can bowl a maximum of 10 overs.

In Division 1 and below, each bowler can bowl a maximum of 8 overs.

16.2 In an interrupted match, no bowler shall bowl more than 20% of the rescheduled total number of overs for the innings, unless this has already been exceeded before the interruption.

For the avoidance of doubt, the number of overs a bowler has remaining is the re-scheduled maximum number of overs minus any overs the bowler has already completed. Therefore, if a bowler has already, or now exceeded the rescheduled maximum, they will no longer be permitted to bowl.

If an interruption occurs mid-over and on resumption the bowler has exceeded the new maximum allocation, they will be allowed to finish the incomplete over.

17 Delayed Start (or pre-emptive decision to reduce the number of overs)

- 17.1 No delayed start match shall start later than 3 hours after the schedule start time.
- 17.2 The number of overs shall be arranged so that both teams have the opportunity of batting for the same number of overs.
- 17.3 No match in the Championship shall be reduced to less than 60 overs, scheduled at 30 overs per team.
 - No match in Divisions 1 and below shall be reduced to less than 50 overs, scheduled at 25 overs per team.
- 17.4 The interval shall be reduced from the maximum of 30 minutes' duration to maximise the playing time available.
- 17.5 The revised number of overs to be bowled, the time allowance, the maximum number of overs per bowler, and the number of PowerPlay overs (Championship only), is calculated from the revised start time and is shown in Appendix A, Table 1 for the Championship, and Appendix B, Table 1 for Division 1 and below.

17.6 The following table displays the required number of runs required for batting bonus points in a match that is delayed or has had a pre-emptive reduction in the number of overs and is then uninterrupted.

The required number of runs required for each batting bonus point is found against the revised number of overs played, rounded down to the nearest number of overs shown in the table:

Overs	Division	1	2	3	4	5
45	Championship	115	135	160	180	205
40	Championship	110	130	150	170	190
25	Championship	105	120	140	155	180
Division 1 and below		70	90	105	125	140
20	Championship	95	110	125	140	170
Division 1 and below		70	85	100	115	130
25	Division 1 and below	70	85	95	110	120

18 Interruptions

The cumulative time lost (i.e., the lost time due to unscheduled interruptions), after play has begun, shall not exceed 3 hours.

19 Interruptions – 1st Innings

- 19.1 The number of overs will not be reduced until 30 minutes of playing time has been lost.
- 19.2 The number of overs available to each team will be recalculated by deducting one over from the scheduled maximum for each 3½ minutes of lost playing time.

The number of overs will be rounded up to the nearest even number and rearranged so that, if possible, both teams have the opportunity of batting for the same number of overs.

The revised time allowance and the maximum number of overs per bowler is shown in Appendix A, Table 2 for the Championship, and Appendix B, Table 2 for Division 1 and below.

19.3 If the side batting first has received more overs than the maximum now available then the innings is immediately closed. The side batting second will receive the revised number of overs and the target score re-calculated using the Duckworth/Lewis method (see Rule 22), or Average Run Rate (see Rule 23). The batting side should always be aware of the target score required should the innings suffer from further interruptions or is ended and should attempt to always be ahead of this score.

- 19.4 Should an interruption have occurred during an over, on the resumption of play, the part over shall be completed in addition to the remaining number of overs remaining.
- 19.5 The time taken for the interval will be reduced to a maximum of 10 minutes. The exact time shall be notified to both team captains by the umpires.

With the view of maximising the available playing time, and where feasible, tea must be brought forward, and taken during an interruption in play.

20 Interruptions – 2nd Innings

20.1 The number of overs available will be recalculated by deducting one over from the scheduled maximum for each 3½ minutes of lost playing time.

The revised time allowance and the maximum number of overs per bowler is shown in Appendix A, Table 2 for the Championship, and Appendix B, Table 2 for Division 1 and below.

A minimum of 10 overs must be bowled to the team batting second to constitute a match (subject to the provisions of Rule 21).

- 20.2 Should an interruption have occurred during an over, on the resumption of play, the part over shall be completed in addition to the remaining number of overs remaining.
- 20.3 The total required to win is re-calculated using the Duckworth/Lewis method (see Rule 22), or Average Run Rate (see Rule 23).

The batting side should always be aware of the target score required should the innings suffer from further interruptions or is ended and should attempt to always be ahead of this score to ensure victory.

21 The Result

Championship only

- 21.1 Where the 1st innings did not consist of a minimum of 25 overs, and no result was gained, the match result will be 'Cancelled'.
- 21.2 In matches where the 1st innings consisted of a minimum of 25 overs but there was insufficient time to allow the 2nd innings to consist of a minimum of 10 overs, unless the team batting second scores enough runs to win in less than 10 overs, the match result will be 'Abandoned'.

Division 1 and below

- 21.3 Where the 1st innings did not consist of a minimum of 20 overs, and no result was gained, the match result will be 'Cancelled'.
- 21.4 In matches where the 1st innings consisted of a minimum of 20 overs, but there was insufficient time to allow the 2nd innings to consist of a minimum of 10 overs, unless the team batting second scores enough runs to win in less than 10 overs, the match result will be 'Abandoned'.

All Divisions

- 21.5 A result can only be achieved if both teams have had the opportunity of batting for at least 10 overs, unless one team has been all out in less than 10 overs or unless the team batting second scores enough runs to win in less than 10 overs.
- 21.6 Where the maximum number of overs available to both sides remain unaltered once play has commenced the team scoring the higher number of runs shall be the winner.
 - If the scores are equal, the result shall be a tie.
- 21.7 If the team batting second has not had the opportunity to complete the agreed number of overs, and has neither been all out, nor has passed its opponent's score, the following shall apply:
 - If the match is abandoned before the Close of Play, the result shall be decided using the Duckworth/Lewis method (see Rule 22), or Average Run Rate (see Rule 23).
 - ii. If, due to suspension of play, the number of overs in the innings of the side batting second has had to be revised, their target score shall be calculated using the Duckworth/Lewis method or Average Run Rate.
 - With the Duckworth/Lewis method, an integral target will be set for the team batting second with one run less than this target resulting in a Tie.
 - With Average Run Rate, and integral target will be set for the team batting second. With one run less than this target resulting in a tie only if that figure is an exact integer.
- 21.8 In matches using the Duckworth/Lewis method, bonus points will be awarded to the losing team, calculated after play has ended using the BDCL Bonus Points Calculator found at:

https://www.bdcl.org.uk/downloads-match-admin/

In matches using Average Run Rate, bonus points will be awarded to the losing team, as per the Tables shown in Rule 10.4 and Rule 17.6, using the number of overs scheduled at the start of play.

22 Duckworth/Lewis

- 22.1 The Duckworth/Lewis (Standard Edition) method must be used.
- 22.2 In the Championship, the G50 value to be used is 210.
 - In all other Divisions, the G50 value to be used is 190.
- 22.3 The Duckworth/Lewis target score for the end of the current over is required to be displayed on or close to the scoreboard, or if not possible, relayed verbally to the batting side. Should any wickets fall during the over, the Duckworth/Lewis target score must be updated and relayed immediately.

23 Average Run Rate

- 23.1 A team's net run rate is calculated by deducting from the average runs per over scored by that team in the match, the average runs per over scored against that team in the match.
- 23.2 In the event of a team being all out in less than its full quota of overs, the calculation of its net run rate shall be based on the full quota of overs to which it would have been entitled and not on the number of overs in which the team was dismissed.

Appendix A - Championship

Table 1 - Delayed Start Matches

			Α			
Start Time	Overs per Team	Length of Innings	Maximum Overs per Bowler			Overs
				PP1	PP2	PP3
11:30 / 12:00	50	3h 20m	5b x 10o	10	30	10
11:37 / 12:07	49	3h 16m	4b x 10o, 1b x 9o	10	29	10
11:44 / 12:14	48	3h 12m	3b x 10o, 2b x 9o	10	29	9
11:51 / 12:21	47	3h 8m	2b x 10o, 3b x 9o	10	28	9
11:58 / 12:28	46	3h 4m	1b x 10o, 4b x 9o	9	28	9
12:05 / 12:35	45	3h	5b x 9o	9	27	9
12:12 / 12:42	44	2h 56m	4b x 9o, 1b x 8o	9	26	9
12:19 / 12:49	43	2h 52m	3b x 9o, 2b x 8o	9	26	8
12:26 / 12:56	42	2h 48m	2b x 9o, 3b x 8o	9	25	8
12:33 / 13:03	41	2h 44m	1b x 9o, 4b x 8o	8	25	8
12:40 / 13:10	40	2h 40m	5b x 8o	8	24	8
12:47 / 13:17	39	2h 36m	4b x 8o, 1b x 7o	8	23	8
12:54 / 13:24	38	2h 32m	3b x 8o, 2b x 7o	8	23	7
13:01 / 13:31	37	2h 28m	2b x 8o, 3b x 7o	8	22	7
13:08 / 13:38	36	2h 24m	1b x 8o, 4b x 7o	7	22	7
13:15 / 13:45	35	2h 20m	5b x 7o	7	21	7
13:22 / 13:52	34	2h 16m	4b x 7o, 1b x 6o	7	20	7
13:29 / 13:59	33	2h 12m	3b x 7o, 2b x 6o	7	20	6
13:36 / 14:06	32	2h 8m	2b x 7o, 3b x 6o	7	19	6
13:43 / 14:13	31	2h 4m	1b x 7o, 4b x 6o	6	19	6
Before 14:30 / 15:00	30	2h	5b x 6o	6	18	6
No play before 14:30 / 15:00			Cancelled			

Table 2 – Interruppted Matches

Overs Remaining	Length of Innings Maximum Overs (+ over in progress) per Bowler		Powe	rPlay	Overs
			PP1	PP2	PP3
49-30		As Table 1			
29	1h 56m	4b x 6o, 1b x 5o	6	17	6
28	1h 52m	3b x 6o, 2b x 5o	6	17	5
27	1h 48m	2b x 6o, 3b x 5o	6	16	5
26	1h 44m	1b x 6o, 4b x 5o	5	16	5
25	1h 40m	5b x 5o	5	15	5
24	1h 36m	4b x 5o, 1b x 4o	5	14	5
23	1h 32m	3b x 5o, 2b x 4o	5	14	4
22	1h 28m	2b x 5o, 3b x 4o	5	13	4
21	1h 24m	1b x 5o, 4b x 4o	4	13	4
20	1h 20m	5b x 4o	4	12	4
19	1h 16m	4b x 4o, 1b x 3o	4	11	4
18	1h 12m	3b x 4o, 2b x 3o	4	11	3
17	1h 8m	2b x 4o, 3b x 3o	4	10	3
16	1h 4m	1b x 4o, 4b x 3o	3	10	3
15	1h 0m	5b x 3o	3	9	3
14	56m	4b x 3o, 1b x 2o	3	8	3
13	52m	3b x 3o, 2b x 2o	3	8	2
12	48m	2b x 3o, 3b x 2o	3	7	2
11	44m	1b x 3o, 4b x 2o	2	7	2
10	40m	5b x 2o	2	6	2
9	36m				
8	32m				
7	28m				
6	24m				
5	20m	Not App	licable		
4	16m				
3	12m				
2	8m				
1	4m				

Appendix B - Division 1 and below

Table 1 - Delayed Start Matches

	A				
Start Time	Overs per Team	Length of Innings	Maximum Overs per Bowler		
12:00 / 13:00	40	2h 40m	5b x 8o		
12:07 / 13:07	39	2h 36m	4b x 8o, 1b x 7o		
12:14 / 13:14	38	2h 32m	3b x 8o, 2b x 7o		
12:21 / 13:21	37	2h 28m	2b x 8o, 3b x 7o		
12:28 / 13:28	36	2h 24m	1b x 8o, 4b x 7o		
12:35 / 13:35	35	2h 20m	5b x 7o		
12:42 / 13:42	34	2h 16m	4b x 7o, 1b x 6o		
12:49 / 13:49	33	2h 12m	3b x 7o, 2b x 6o		
12:56 / 13:56	32	2h 08m	2b x 7o, 3b x 6o		
13:03 / 14:03	31	2h 04m	1b x 7o, 4b x 6o		
13:10 / 14:10	30	2h	5b x 6o		
13:17 / 14:17	29	1h 56m	4b x 6o, 1b x 5o		
13:24 / 14:24	28	1h 52m	3b x 6o, 2b x 5o		
13:31 / 14:31	27	1h 48m	2b x 6o, 3b x 5o		
13:38 / 14:38	26	1h 44m	1b x 6o, 4b x 5o		
Before 15:00 / 16:00	25	1h 40m	5b x 5o		
No play before 15:00 / 16:00		Cancelled			

Table 2 – Interruppted Matches

Overs Remaining	Length of Innings (+ over in progress)	Maximum Overs per Bowler
40-25	,	As Table 1
24	1h 36m	4b x 5o, 1b x 4o
23	1h 32m	3b x 5o, 2b x 4o
22	1h 28m	2b x 5o, 3b x 4o
21	1h 24m	1b x 5o, 4b x 4o
20	1h 20m	5b x 4o
19	1h 16m	4b x 4o, 1b x 3o
18	1h 12m	3b x 4o, 2b x 3o
17	1h 8m	2b x 4o, 3b x 3o
16	1h 4m	1b x 4o, 4b x 3o
15	1h 0m	5b x 3o
14	56m	4b x 3o, 1b x 2o
13	52m	3b x 3o, 2b x 2o
12	48m	2b x 3o, 3b x 2o
11	44m	1b x 3o, 4b x 2o
10	40m	5b x 2o
9	36m	
8	32m	
7	28m	
6	24m	
5	20m	Not Applicable
4	16m	
3	12m	
2	8m	
1	4m	

Rules & Playing Conditions – t20 Cup Competitions

1 Title

The titles of the Competition shall be The John J. Mallen t20 Cup Competition, and the Harry Tomlins t20 Cup Competition.

2 Entry

- 2.1 The John J. Mallen t20 Cup Competition is open to all member clubs.
 - The Harry Tomlins t20 Cup Competition is open to clubs in Division 2 and below.
- 2.2 Each member club may enter one team.
- 2.3 Member clubs are required to submit their application to the League Secretary prior to the end of November of each year.

3 Constitution

- 3.1 The competitions will be straight knockout tournaments.
- 3.2 The winners of each final will be crowned winners
- 3.3 The winner of the John J. Mallen t20 Cup Competition will go forward to the ECB Vitality Club t20 Plate Competition.
- 3.4 Any team withdrawing from the competition will have their results expunged.

4 Qualification & Registration of Players

Clubs are encouraged to utilise Rule 4, Section D to fulfil fixtures where required.

- 4.1 Any club that fields an unregistered or ineligible player shall be disqualified.
- 4.2 No player who has played for a club in the competition is eligible to play for another club in the competition in the same season.
- 4.3 No player will be eligible to play unless they have played at least half of their matches (both t20 and League) for that team or a lower team during the current season.
- 4.4 Any such breach will result in the player(s) being referred to the League Management Committee Sanctions Sub-Committee.

5 Match Balls

Each club should be provided with one pink ball for use during the match. Should a pink ball not have been supplied, a red ball should be used which complies with Rule 8.3, Section B.

Each club must provide used spare pink and/or red balls. All red balls are to comply with Rule 8.3, Section B and be in sufficient quantity to minimise time lost during the innings.

All spare balls are to be placed in a suitable container, which is to be stored at the side of the pitch, ideally by the scorer, for ease of supply.

6 Umpires & Scorers

6.1 Each appointed Umpire shall, not later than the end of the interval, be paid match expenses of £25.00.

In the event of only one registered League Umpire being appointed, or turning up for a match, and that Umpire takes the bowling end throughout the match, they shall be paid £35.00.

Following the arrival of both teams and the Umpire(s) at the ground, should there be no play in the game, and, should prevailing ground, weather, and light conditions allow, a bowl out takes place to determine a winner, each Umpire shall be paid match expenses of £15.00.

The cost of the Umpire(s) is to be shared by both clubs.

- 6.2 In all games, it is expected that each team shall provide their own competent, scorer in all matches. If a team fails to provide a scorer a player has to be nominated from the team to take up the duty for the entire duration of the match.
- 6.3 The use of live electronic scoring is strongly encouraged for all matches.

7 Clothing

Players in all matches will wear clothing and equipment in accordance with ECB Guidelines. Clothing can be either white or coloured, however there is a preference for coloured clothing where possible.

Coloured clothing should not be predominantly pink or red.

8 No-Ball

Law 41.6 (Bowling of dangerous and unfair short-pitched deliveries) shall apply with the following additions:

8.1 Regardless of how wide of the striker a delivery is, there shall be no more than one delivery per over that after pitching pass or would have passed clearly over shoulder height of the striker standing upright at the popping crease.

- 8.2 The umpire shall make it clear to the bowler (and any bowler called upon to complete an over) and the batters at the wicket when a delivery within the limit in Rule 8.1 has been bowled. It is unfair if the limit is exceeded, and the umpire shall call and signal No ball on each such occasion and consider it as part of the warning sequence in Laws 41.6.3 and 41.6.4.
- 8.3 A different signal shall be used to signify a fast short pitched "No Ball". The Umpire shall call and signal "No Ball" then raise the other arm across the chest. If the bowler exceeds their limit of short-pitched deliveries in an over not only must the Umpire call "No Ball" but he must invoke the procedures of Law 41.6.3 regarding cautioning the bowler. If a bowler is "No Balled" a second time in the innings for the same offence the Umpire is to invoke Law 41.6.4 and the bowler shall be removed forthwith and shall not be allowed to bowl again in that innings.

Note: For the avoidance of doubt the warnings detailed in Laws 41.6.1, 41.6.2 and those above in Rules 8.1 and 8.2, are cumulative.

8.4 Law 41.7 (Bowling of dangerous and unfair non-pitching deliveries) shall apply.

9 Free Hit after a No Ball

- 9.1 The delivery following a no ball shall be a free hit for whichever batter is facing it.
 - Note: this applies to all modes of No ball except for a short-pitched delivery that passes or would have passed clearly over head height of the striker standing upright at the popping crease.
- 9.2 If the delivery for a free hit is not a legitimate delivery (any kind of no ball or wide), then the next delivery shall become a free hit for whichever batter is facing it.
- 9.3 For any free hit, the striker can be dismissed only under the circumstances that apply for a no ball, even if the delivery for the free hit is called wide ball.
- 9.4 Field changes are not permitted for free hit deliveries unless there is a change of striker, or the No Ball was the result of a field restriction breach in which case the field may be changed to the extent of correcting the breach. However, in all circumstances, any fielder within 15 yards of the striker may retreat to a position on the same line no more than 15 yards from the striker.
- 9.5 The umpires shall signal free hit by (after the normal no ball signal) extending one arm straight upwards and moving it in a circular motion.

10 Law 22 - Wide Ball - Judging a Wide

Any ball, not being a No Ball, that passes the striker's leg stump, irrespective of where that ball pitched, will be called, and signalled a wide. It will not be a wide if the ball contacts the striker, their person or equipment, or the bat in hand before it passes the line of the stumps, or the ball passes between the striker and the leg stump.

In addition, any ball that passes outside the off-side wide-line, will be called, and signalled a wide. The off-side wide-line will be marked at 35 inches (89 cm) on each side of the imaginary centre line [17 inches (43.2 cm)] inside each Return crease.

11 Restrictions of the Placement of Fielders

- 11.1 At the instant of delivery, there may not be more than 5 fielders on the leg side.
- 11.2 A fielding circle shall be marked on the field of play by white plastic or rubber disks

The fielding circle shall consist of two semi-circles which shall have as their centre the middle stump at either end of the pitch. The ends of which shall be joined by a straight parallel line.

The radius of each semi-circle shall be 30 yards (27.4 metres).

- 11.3 The first 6 overs of each innings will constitute a 'Power Play' whereby only two fielders are permitted to be outside the field restriction markings at the instant of delivery.
- 11.4 For the remainder of the innings only five fielders are permitted to be outside the field restriction markings at the instant of delivery.
- 11.5 In circumstances when the number of overs of the batting team is reduced, the number of 'Power Play' Overs shall be reduced and details found in Appendix A, Tables 1, 2 and 3.

If the batting side has received more 'Power Play' overs than the maximum now allows, then the 'Power Play' is over. Rule 11.4 shall apply.

11.6 In the event of an infringement of the above fielding restrictions, the Umpire at the striker's end shall call and signal 'No Ball' (Rule 9 shall apply).

12 Timed Out

The incoming batter must be in position to take ground, or for their partner to be ready to receive the next ball, within 1 minute 30 seconds of the fall of the previous wicket. Any infringement of this rule shall result in the incoming batter being declared out by the Umpires.

13 Matches

13.1 All matches shall be played on or before the dates published by the League Management Committee.

Participating clubs are to inform the Match Administrator of the day, date and start time of matches, as agreed between the participating clubs.

Where reserve dates are available, these will be communicated by the Match Administrator. Reserve dates will only be used with the mutual agreement of both clubs concerned and if circumstances allow.

- 13.2 In exceptional circumstances, a match may be played on an artificial pitch. The umpires will have sole authority over this decision.
- 13.3 In the event of inclement weather where a match is not possible, Rule 20.1 will apply.
- 13.4 The Finals for both competitions will be played on a date and venue as chosen by the League Management Committee.

14 Hours of Play

- 14.1 All matches will commence at a time as agreed between the participating clubs, but no match can start after 6.00pm.
- 14.2 Matches will last no more than 3 hours in total.
- 14.3 The Umpires will have sole authority as to when the interval shall be taken.

15 Length of Innings

- 15.1 Each team shall bat for 20 overs unless all out earlier.
 - If the team batting first is dismissed in less than 20 overs, the team batting second shall be entitled to bat for 20 overs.
- 15.2 All teams are expected to be in position to bowl the first ball of the last of their 20 overs within 1 hour 15 minutes playing time.
 - Teams should aim for a minimum of 4 overs in every 15 minutes of playing time.
 - It is the responsibility of the captain to ensure that their team bowl their allocated overs within the playing time.
- 15.3 The interval should be no longer than 15 minutes.
- 15.4 With the agreement of both Captains bearing in mind the prevailing ground, weather, and light conditions it is considered most unlikely that the full quota of overs will be bowled in any match, it is recommended that a pre-emptive decision is made to reduce overs in both innings equally. The level of the deduction will be decided by the two Captains.
 - No match shall be reduced to less than 10 overs duration scheduled at 5 overs per team.

15.5 Umpires shall make time allowances for unavoidable stoppages caused by injury or other extenuating circumstances.

In such circumstances the match schedule may be extended, but by no more than 30 minutes. The tables shown in the Appendices are to be updated, as necessary.

Stoppages for ball loss and replacement, batter change, and any other noninjury or extenuating circumstances have been included in the match schedule and need not be recorded.

15.6 If in the opinion of the Umpires, the team fielding fails to bowl the required number of overs by the scheduled time for the cessation of their innings, play shall continue until the full guota of overs have been completed.

One fewer fielder shall be permitted outside the fielding restriction area (see Rule 11.4) than would normally be the case in the over(s) in progress at that time.

All penalties in this regard will be imposed immediately the ball first becomes dead after the scheduled or re-scheduled cessation time for the innings.

In an interrupted match where one innings is reduced to 10 overs or less, this rule will not apply.

15.7 Umpires are instructed to apply a strict interpretation of time wasting by the batter (5 run penalties) specifically; batters are expected to be ready for the start of a new over as soon as the bowler is ready.

16 Overs per Bowler

- 16.1 No bowler shall bowl more than 20% of the scheduled number of overs for the innings, therefore each bowler can bowl a maximum of 4 overs.
- 16.2 In an interrupted match, no bowler shall bowl more than 20% of the rescheduled total number of overs for the innings, unless this has already been exceeded before the interruption.

For the avoidance of doubt, the number of overs a bowler has remaining is the re-scheduled maximum number of overs minus any overs the bowler has already completed. Therefore, if a bowler has already, or now exceeded the rescheduled maximum, they will no longer be permitted to bowl.

If an interruption occurs mid-over and on resumption the bowler has exceeded the new maximum allocation, they will be allowed to finish the incomplete over.

16.3 The ECB Fast Bowling Directives provision requiring an equivalent number of overs from the same end to have elapsed before a subsequent spell can commence shall not apply (e.g., the 4 overs may be bowled at any time in the innings irrespective of the number of spells bowled).

17 Delayed Start

- 17.1 The interval will be reduced to 10 minutes.
- 17.2 The number of overs to be bowled is calculated from the time of the revised start time and is found in Appendix A, Table 1.

18 Interruptions - 1st Innings

- 18.1 The interval will be reduced to 10 minutes.
- 18.2 The revised number of overs available to each team, the time allowance, and the maximum number of overs per bowler, is calculated from the time of the resumption and is shown in Appendix A, Table 2.
- 18.3 If the side batting first has received more overs than the maximum now available then the innings is immediately closed. The side batting second will receive the revised number of overs and the total to win is re-calculated using the Duckworth/Lewis method (see Rule 21).
 - The batting side should always be aware of the target score required should the innings suffer from further interruptions or is ended and should attempt to always be ahead of this score.
- 18.4 Should an interruption have occurred during an over, on the resumption of play, the part over shall be completed in addition to the remaining number of overs remaining.

19 Interruptions – 2nd Innings

- 19.1 The revised number of overs remaining, the time allowance and the maximum number of overs per bowler, is calculated from the time of the resumption in play and is shown in Appendix A, Table 3.
 - A minimum of 5 overs must be bowled to the team batting second to constitute a match (subject to the provisions of Rule 20).
- 19.2 Should an interruption have occurred during an over, on the resumption of play, the part over shall be completed before starting the revised number of overs.
- The total required to win is re-calculated using the Duckworth/Lewis method (see Rule 21).
 - The batting side should be aware of the Par score required should the innings suffer from further interruptions or is abandoned and should attempt to always be ahead of this score to gain victory.

20 The Result

20.1 A result can only be achieved if both teams have had the opportunity of batting for at least 5 overs, unless one team has been all out in less than 5 overs or unless the team batting second scores enough runs to win in less than 5 overs. If both teams have not had the opportunity of batting for a minimum of 5 overs, or a match cancelled when all players and officials are present, the result shall be determined by the following criteria, taken in order:

- i. A replay on a reserve date.
- A bowl out (should prevailing ground, weather and light conditions allow) (see Rule 23).
- iii. The toss of a coin when both Captains are present.
- iv. The toss of a coin, by the League Secretary.
- 20.2 Where the maximum number of overs available to both sides remain unaltered once play has commenced the team scoring the higher number of runs shall be the winner.

If the scores are equal, the result shall be a tie (see Rule 20.4).

- 20.3 If the team batting second has not had the opportunity to complete the agreed number of overs, and has neither been all out, not has passed its opponent's score, the following shall apply:
 - If the match is abandoned before the Close of Play, the result shall be decided using the Duckworth/Lewis method (see Rule 21).
 - If, due to suspension of play, the number of overs in the innings of the side batting second has had to be revised, their target score shall be calculated using the Duckworth/Lewis method (see Rule 21).

With the Duckworth/Lewis method, an integral target will be set for the team batting second with one run less than this target resulting in a Tie.

- 20.4 If the result is a Tie, the winner shall be determined by the following criteria, taken in order:
 - A super over (should time, prevailing ground, weather, and light conditions allow) (see Rule 22)
 - ii. The team that has lost the fewest wickets.
 - iii. The team with the higher score at the end of the 6th completed over.
 - iv. The side with the higher score at the end of the 5th, 4th, 3rd, 2nd, and 1st completed over.
 - A bowl out (should prevailing ground, weather and light conditions allow) (see Rule 23).
 - vi. The toss of a coin when both Captains are present.
 - vii. The toss of a coin, by the Match Administrator.

21 Duckworth/Lewis

21.1 The Duckworth/Lewis (DL) (Standard Edition) method must be used in all matches. If any match is suspended after it has started such that the number of overs available to be faced by either side is reduced from that determined when the match started, the revised target shall be computed using the latest version of the Standard Duckworth/Lewis Method provided with the Play-Cricket Scorer Pro Laptop program or with the App on Tablets or Smart Phones in accordance with the instructions provided with that software and displayed on the screen. Arrangements shall be made for the provision of back-up capability, in case of computer malfunction, for the operation or continued operation. This shall be in the form of [another] smartphone or tablet where Play-Cricket Scorer is installed.

Note: It will be the responsibility of the **HOME** club to ensure that a competent person is available to input the scores to set the Target as calculated automatically and ensure that the Par Score for the end of the over is correct and that this score is displayed on the ground.

21.2 For this competition, the G50 value to be used is 245.

22 Super Over

- 22.1 The teams shall compete in a Super Over to determine the winner.
- 22.2 Subject to weather conditions, the Super Over will take place at a time to be determined by the Officials.
 - In normal circumstances it shall commence 10 minutes after the conclusion of the match.
- 22.3 The Super Over will take place on the pitch allocated for the match (the designated pitch) unless otherwise determined by the umpires in consultation with the captains.
- 22.4 The umpires shall stand at the same end as that in which they finished the match.
- 22.5 In both innings of the Super Over, the fielding side shall choose from which end to bowl.
- 22.6 Only nominated players in the main match may participate in the Super Over. Should any player (including the batters and bowler) be unable to continue to participate in the Super Over due to injury, illness or other wholly acceptable reason, the relevant Laws and Playing Conditions as they apply in the main match shall also apply in the Super Over.
- 22.7 Any penalty time being served in the main match shall be carried forward to the Super Over.
- 22.8 Each team's over is played with the same fielding restrictions as per Rules 11.1 and 11.4.

- 22.9 The team batting second in the match will bat first in the Super Over.
- 22.10 The Umpires shall select a ball from the available spare balls which shall be used for both overs of the Super Over. The ball to be used shall not be a new ball.
- 22.11 The loss of two wickets in the over ends the team's one over innings.
- 22.12 In the event of the teams having the same score after the Super Over has been completed, the team whose batters hit the greatest number of boundaries in the Super Over shall be the winner.
- 22.13 If still equal, a count-back from the final ball of the Super Over. The team with the higher scoring delivery shall be the winner. If a team loses two wickets during its over, then any un-bowled deliveries will be counted as dot balls. Note that for this purpose, the runs scored from a delivery is defined as the total team runs scored since the completion of the previous legitimate ball, i.e., including any runs resulting from wides, no ball or penalty runs.
- 22.14 If still equal, then another Super Over shall be played.

23 Bowl Outs

- 23.1 In the event of no result being obtained by other methods and where there is no reserve date on which to play the game, a bowl out (outdoors only) will take place to achieve a result.
- 23.2 Five players from each side will bowl two overarm deliveries each at a wicket (conforming to Law 8) from a wicket pitched at 22 yards with, if practicable, bowling, popping and return creases marked (conforming to Law 7). The side, which bowls down the wicket (as defined in Law 29.1.1) the most times, shall be the winner. If the scores are equal, the same players will bowl one ball alternately to achieve a result on a 'sudden death' basis.
- 23.3 The following shall also apply in respect of bowl-outs:

The same suitably acceptable ball (not a new one) will be used by both teams. If the ball becomes wet, it may be changed subject to the Umpires' approval.

If a bowler bowls a No ball it will count as one of the two deliveries but will not count towards the score of the team.

The five cricketers nominated to take part in the bowl-out must be chosen from the eleven cricketers selected to play in the match.

If required, each side will appoint a wicketkeeper to stand behind the wicket but out of reach of the stumps.

Appendix A

Table 1 – Delayed Start Matches

Start Time	Overs per Team	Length of Innings	Overs per Bowler	No. of PowerPlay Overs
(h):00	20	1h 20m	5b x 4o	6
(h):18	19	1h 16m	4b x 4o, 1b x 3o	5
(h):26	18	1h 12m	3b x 4o, 2b x 3o	5
(h):34	17	1h 8m	2b x 4o, 3b x 3o	5
(h):42	16	1h 4m	1b x 4o, 4b x 3o	4
(h):50	15	1h	5b x 3o	4
(h):58	14	56m	4b x 3o, 1b x 2o	4
(h+1):06	13	52m	3b x 3o, 2b x 2o	3
(h+1):14	12	48m	2b x 3o, 3b x 2o	3
(h+1):22	11	44m	1b x 3o, 4b x 2o	3
(h+1):30	10	40m	5b x 2o	3
(h+1):38	9	36m	4b x 2o, 1b x 1o	2
(h+1):46	8	32m	3b x 2o, 2b x 1o	2
(h+1):54	7	28m	2b x 2o, 3b x 1o	2
(h+2):02	6	24m	1b x 2o, 4b x 1o	1
(h+2):10	5	20m	5b x 1o	1
No play before (h+2):10	Abandoned - bowl out or coin toss for winner if no reserve date available			

Notes: For a game starting at 1:00pm:

h = 1 h+1 = 2

h+2 = 3

Table 2 - Interruppted Matches (1st Innings)

Time of Resumption	Overs Remaining [A]
(h):00	40
(h):14	39
(h):18	38
(h):22	37
(h):26	36
(h):30	35
(h):34	34
(h):38	33
(h):42	32
(h):46	31
(h):50	30
(h):54	29
(h):58	28
(h+1):02	27
(h+1):06	26
(h+1):10	25
(h+1):14	24
(h+1):18	23

Time of Resumption	Overs Remaining [A]
(h+1):22	22
(h+1):26	21
(h+1):30	20
(h+1):34	19
(h+1):38	18
(h+1):42	17
(h+1):46	16
(h+1):50	15
(h+1):54	14
(h+1):58	13
(h+2):02	12
(h+2):06	11
(h+2):10	10
(h+2):14	9
(h+2):18	8
(h+2):22	7
(h+2):26	6
(h+2):30	5

No resumption in	Abandoned -
play before	bowl out or coin toss for winner if no reserve date available
(h+2):30	bowl out of colli toss for willier if no reserve date available

The following calculations are required:

B = The number of completed overs bowled at the interruption.

C = Overs Available = A + B (A from above table)

Overs per Team = C/2 and rounded down

When the number of overs per team has been calculated, the 'Length of Innings', 'Overs per Bowler' and 'No. of PowerPlay overs' can be determined from Table 3.

Table 3 - Interrupted Matches (2nd Innings)

Time of Resumption	Overs Remaining	Length of Innings (+ over in progress)	Overs per Bowler	No. of PowerPlay Overs	
(h+1):40	20	1h 20m	5b x 4o	6	
(h+1):44	19	1h 16m	4b x 4o, 1b x 3o	5	
(h+1):48	18	1h 12m	3b x 4o, 2b x 3o	5	
(h+1):52	17	1h 8m	2b x 4o, 3b x 3o	5	
(h+1):56	16	1h 4m	1b x 4o, 4b x 3o	4	
(h+2):00	15	1h 0m	5b x 3o	4	
(h+2):04	14	56m	4b x 3o, 1b x 2o	4	
(h+2):08	13	52m	3b x 3o, 2b x 2o	3	
(h+2):12	12	48m	2b x 3o, 3b x 2o	3	
(h+2):16	11	44m	1b x 3o, 4b x 2o	3	
(h+2):20	10	40m	5b x 2o	3	
(h+2):24	9	36m	4b x 2o, 1b x 1o	2	
(h+2):28	8	32m	3b x 2o, 2b x 1o	2	
(h+2):32	7	28m	2b x 2o, 3b x 1o	2	
(h+2):36	6	24m	1b x 2o, 4b x 1o	1	
(h+2):40	5	20m	5b x 1o	1	
No resumption in play before (h+2):40	Abandoned bowl out or coin toss for winner if no reserve date available				

The following should be used where there is sufficient time to allow the innings to consist of a minimum of 5 overs or where play can resume and the overs available can be added to those already completed to conclude the game.

Time of Resumption	Overs Remaining	Length of Innings (+ over in progress)	Overs per Bowler	No. of PowerPlay Overs		
(h+2):44	4	16m	As above (Determined by total number of overs)			
(h+2):48	3	12m				
(h+2):52	2	8m				
(h+2):56	1	4m				
No resumption in play before (h+2):56	bowl or	Abandoned if less than 5 overs completed - bowl out or coin toss for winner if no reserve date available				

Active Umpires

David Audus			m:	07828 026463	201
Glynn Bailey	t:	01909 530314	m:	07501 431843	213
Paul Barker	t:	01773 609690	m:	07813 203488	7
Paul David Barker	t:	01623 863522	m:	07929 523371	155
Richard Barnes	t:	01909 482002	m:	07795 982719	156
lain Bates	t:	01777 700964	m:	07714 660823	183
Richard Beastall	t:	01623 481016	m:	07927 349969	8
Ian Beaumont	t:	01909 566979	m:	07907 126950	179
Geoff Bembridge	t:	01909 486766	m:	07591 554542	9
Anthony Bird	t:	01623 757836	m:	07922 572984	11
Christopher Blood			m:	07388 905722	208
Chris Bramham	t:	01427 891693	m:	07394 926227	14
Taff Brooks			m:	07960 915414	191
Derek Brumpton	t:	01777 248327	m:	07531 466289	18
Peter Burgess	t:	01142 488584	m:	07527 689744	150
Michael Carlisle			m:	07854 782615	21
Paul Chambers	t:	01777 818872	m:	07790 980491	182
Robert Coupe	t:	01623 465474	m:	07581 203028	124
Andrew Day	t:	01909 731423	m:	07725 666445	29
Paul Denham			m:	07929 662878	212
Mark Dobb	t:	01623 610068	m:	07889 253551	32
Ian Donaldson	t:	01246 854280	m:	07928 475336	195
Alan Dooley			m:	07799 088373	200
George Evans	t:	01159 205811	m:	07807 862782	34
Ron Firth	t:	01909 473011	m:	07710 357396	187
Gary France			m:	07542 122567	38
Peter Freer	t:	01142 873704	m:	07875 126692	39
David Froggatt	t:	01909 566555	m:	07730 896889	40
Phillip Frost	t:	01949 851583	m:	07484 177770	215
Henry Gourley	t:	01427 848288	m:	07745 692861	43
Paul Gratton	t:	01709 730553	m:	07904 341829	177

Ian Halfpenny			m:	07531 355014	168
Darron Hall			m:	07974 798875	161
Nigel Hall	t:	01777 711677	m:	07971 686253	46
Bill Henton	t:	01623 862296	m:	07922 045967	50
Guy Johnson			m:	07990 503503	211
Gary Key	t:	01623 614507	m:	07570 794048	57
Mark Langford	t:	01623 470324	m:	07899 970749	202
Brian Lenihan	t:	01909 562797	m:	07774 680591	66
Keith Limb	t:	01427 679222	m:	07939 163236	69
Stephen Long	t:	01909 567365	m:	07772 429406	70
Simon Moden			m:	07806 698665	173
Alan Mosley	t:	01909 562857	m:	07826 148940	157
Tom Munro	t:	01909 720812	m:	07796 332072	81
David Parnham	t:	01623 862312	m:	07788 568884	134
Steve Plant	t:	01246 410851	m:	07564 944230	158
Ian Rich	t:	01623 824704	m:	07851 442541	90
Trevor Riley	t:	01159 271490	m:	07792 057753	165
Steve Sessions	t:	01623 708873	m:	07817 601042	97
Alan Shawcroft	t:	01246 204759	m:	07817 576633	164
David Shepherd	t:	01909 484568	m:	07816 149790	99
Peter Snow	t:	01427 753039	m:	07840 871537	149
Terry Spence	t:	01909 591765	m:	07986 968396	105
Ivan Stallworthy	t:	01909 480420	m:	07988 883958	190
Andy Stephenson	t:	01623 625671	m:	07497 678999	192
Bill Stewardson	t:	01142 499099	m:	07852 560884	189
Sam Stringfellow	t:	01777 711525	m:	07972 295428	135
Ian Tingle	t:	01909 459970	m:	07946 147827	209
Howard Tomlinson	t:	01909 732106	m:	07958 482250	146
Paul Tomlinson	t:	01777 704775	m:	07805 195129	109
Graham Tune	t:	01909 566024			110
David Wager	t:	01623 861198	m:	07917 015061	196
Paul Westbury			m:	07715 235007	214
David Whitham	t:	01623 793466			113

John Whitworth	t:	01709 545101	m:	07726 149216	115
David Williams	t:	01427 848560	m:	07926 365665	116
Lee Willis			m:	07713 624080	206
Lee Wilson			m:	07970 050095	207
Peter Wood	t:	01777 838060	m:	07898 940764	205
Brian Woods	t:	01623 835461	m:	07949 330280	197
Graham Wright	t:	01909 733534	m:	07708 418420	122

The Bassetlaw & District Cricket League



www.bdcl.org.uk bassetlawdcl.play-cricket.com

facebook.com/bdclofficial







